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R. Subrahmanyam, i1As
Secretary

Ministry of Human Resource Development
Department of Higher Education
Government of India

MESSAGE

| feel happy to see that Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute not only
carried out programmes, reaching higher physical targets than as
mandated for the year in the Xth Addendum to their MoU but also held a
number of productive engagements with its Indian and Canadian
Members Council during the year 2018-19. | am also pleased to witness
that the Institute has continued tu support an overarching range of
subjects like Humanities and Social Sciences, Law, Management, Fine
arts, Information Science, Environment and STEM.

Shastri Institute continued its tremendous work in paving the path
to bring together academia and researchers of all segments, including
undergraduates of India and Canada, resulting into a fruitful collaboration
for the benefit of mankind. The facilitation extended by the Shastri
Institute as a nodal body in managing the Canadian component of
MHRD administered global programmes, i.e. SPARC and GIAN are
exceptional and very much appreciated by us. Along with its well-
planned annual programmes, the Institute carried out academic events
and activities leading to the creation and dissemination of knowledge
and also synced with Government of India’s initiative such as celebrating
150 years of Mahatma Gandhi and 550 years of Guru Nanak Saheb in
Canada by organizing lectures and conferences disseminating their
teachings.

| wish SICI has a similarly successful coming year, running
effective annual programming and also a series of events under this
umbrella of Golden Jubilee Celebrations.

f

o
(R. SUBRAHMANYAM)
07.11.2019

Room No. 127, 'C' Wing, Shastri Bhavan, New Delhi-110 115 E-mail : subrahyd@gmail.com
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About Us

The Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute (SICI) is a unique bi-national educational organization with 147
member institutions of higher education throughout India and Canada. In its 50 years of existence,
the Shastri Institute has been instrumental in building and strengthening intellectual and cultural
linkages through research, dialogue and exchange between India and Canada.

The Shastri Institute, named after Shri Lal Bahadur Shastri, one of the most prominent and dynamic
Prime Ministers of India, was founded through a mutual proclamation of the governments of Canada
and India. The promotion of India-centric studies and research in Canadian higher education
institutions and Canada-centric research in Indian institutions of higher learning through India studies
and Canada studies programmes were the Institute’s initial purposes. With its early focus on the
humanities and social sciences, the Institute devised various programmes including fellowships and
providing books and journals pertaining to India to the libraries of the three founding Canadian
members of the Institute - McGill University, the University of British Columbia, and the University of
Toronto. The year 2005 was a landmark year in its history when the Institute became a truly bi-
national organization supported and governed equally by both the governments. With offices in New
Delhi, India, and Calgary, Canada, it is the only organization in the Canada-India higher education
corridor that has 110 institutional members in India and 37 in Canada, all of which are premier
universities with a reputation for excellence.

The Institute provides funds through adjudicated programmes for academicians, researchers,
students, artists and youth from the two countries. These programmes may last from one month to
a couple of years and even more. Young scholars, faculty & researchers of these programmes return
to their home countries with knowledge to share and relationships that further facilitate bi-national
collaboration in academics and research.

Vision, Mission & Goal
Vision

To nurture linkages and facilitate academic exchanges, partnerships, and networks between India
and Canada, thus, enriching the relationship between two of the world’s great democracies.

Mission

To improve the quality of life of the people of Canada and India by building and strengthening
intellectual and cultural connections through research, dialogue and exchange.

Goal

To further the bi-national ethos through diverse programmes facilitating scholarly research and
exchanges among Indian and Canadian universities, cultural organizations and government
bodies.




Message from the President

Dear Readers,

At Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute, | assumed my term as its President in May 2018. | would like
to thank all the past SICI Presidents of last 50 years, for establishing and implementing SICI’s
vision in higher education for India and Canada. Year 2018 was filled with activities, events,
outreaches, new members, all aimed at harnessing relationships between India and Canada.

SICI’s bold initiative to build on the potential of these two great democracies has been well-
demonstrated in terms of addressing challenges and issues relating to research and higher
education, generating knowledge and presenting growth opportunities by creating programmes
to build stronger links between Canada and India over the course of the year 2018-19. | wish to
acknowledge the continued cooperation and contribution of SICI's Executive Council in the
smooth conduct of the Institute affairs over the past year. | welcome the new President and the
new Executive Council and wish them the very best in their endeavours.

SICI is highly committed to support its members in their intellectual pursuits and ambitions. It
remains a unique model for bi-national academic cooperation that works to create and deliver
value to members through focussing programmes in critical areas of engagement via rich
diversity of disciplines including Law, Business, Economic Reforms, Science & Technology,
Biotechnology, Agriculture & Distance Education. With the unstinted support and guidance of
the Ministry of Human Resource Development, Government of India and Global Affairs Canada,
SICI stepped up its activities to increase its reach and influence that went beyond events and
interactions.

During the year there has been an effective programming managed by the Institute. India office
successfully facilitated visits of many Canadian universities to India that enabled many
collaborations between Indian and Canadian institutions. With official appointment of SICI as




facilitator on two major components of Government of India programmes i.e. GIAN and SPARC,
India office continues to support MHRD'’s outreach in Canada.

This year experienced a major change in the policy of the institute. With Indian Advisory Council’s
decision, India office for the first time in our fifty years’ history opened up its membership to the
private institutions. It doesn’t end here, the norms to admit new members have been made far
more stringent to maintain the standards of the Institute’s member council. | am pleased to share
that Institute’s membership has increased in leaps and bounds, with twenty-five new Institutions
joining the IMC and three Institutions joining CMC. On the administrative side, it gives me
immense pleasure in sharing with you that the Indian Advisory Council in its meeting dated
Aprill6, 2019 has approved the long pending proposal for the revision of salaries and
designations of India office employees. | am sure with this revision we would be able to retain
our dedicated and competent staff and they will no more be tempted to join other institutions.

| must also express my gratitude to Prof. John Reid, Vice-President and my worthy successor as
President for his time and help in carrying out my duties. Thanks are also due to other Executive
Committee members Prof. Badami, Prof. Malhotra who is also our Secretary Treasurer, Prof.
Goswami and Prof. Ghuman for their deliberations and inputs in the EC meetings. | would indeed
be failing in my duty if | do not place on record my deepest appreciation of support which | got
from Dr. Prachi Kaul, Director, SICl and other staff members of India Office.

| express on my personal behalf and on behalf of the Institute, my deepest gratitude to the Shri
Subrahmanyam, Secretary, Department of Higher Education, Ministry of Human Resource
Development, Dr. N. Saravana Kumar, Joint Secretary (ICC), Department of Higher Education,
Ministry of Human Resource Development, H.E. Shri Vikas Swarup, High Commissioner of India
to Canada, H.E. Mr. Nadir Patel, High Commissioner of Canada to India and Ms. Soyoung Park,
the Deputy High Commissioner of Canada to India. Thank you indeed.

| wish to sincerely thank SICI's member institutions for the support provided during the year.
Their participation and membership has been instrumental in the promotion of SICI’s goals and
objectives. | also acknowledge and thank SICI staff for their dedication and diligent efforts in
keeping the show going.

Prof. Faizan Mustafa
President, SICI




Director’s Message

| am immensely grateful to those individuals and partners whose energy and support sustained and
motivated us. This report only provides a glimpse of what was accomplished in the year; many efforts
and items of business remain unreported as it is not possible to pen down each day’s activities. In
addition, it is important to acknowledge that there were sincere efforts from my SICI staff in India
and Canada to facilitate any request that came our way. As a conscious effort, we never disappointed
anyone even if it was beyond our scope of work. Efforts were in place to reach out to areas with the
slightest possibility or scope to nurture the relationship and collaboration of individuals and
institutions from two great nations — India and Canada. As an agenda for the coming year, | will work
towards increasing our facilitation to the member institutions that need more support and guidance
to increase their standards of operations in terms of teaching, learning and research. Efforts will be
made to have closer ties and engagements with member institutions to understand their
requirements and respond to their specific needs. | also wish to inform that there are efforts in place
to diversify our funding and we have a sound roadmap ready to proceed.

To bring more efficiency in the overall functioning of the Institute, the two vacant positions of
‘Programme Officer’ and ‘Programme Officer-Communications & Facilitation’ were announced in
December, 2018. The Interviews for the position of Programme Officer — Communication &
Facilitation were held in February, 2019, as result of which the appointment for the said position was
made in March 2019. For the other position of Programme Officer, the interviews of shortlisted
candidates are currently being conducted. Besides recruitment of the staff, the committed
programme expenditure of Rs. 290 lakhs brought forward from the financial year 2017-18 was spent
fully for the awardees of 2017-18. The expenditure incurred in the year 2018-19 was 26.05% for
operating expenses (inclusive of capital expenditure) and 73.95% for programmes.

Finally, | wish to place in record the support and guidance of SICI's Executive Council, and especially
the efforts of Prof. Faizan Mustafa, President, Prof. John Reid, Vice President, and Prof. Anil Mehrotra,
the Secretary Treasurer, for extending their valuable time and energies. | wish to thank MHRD-
Government of India for outstanding support to the institute. Special thanks are due to Shri. R.
Subrahmanyam, Secretary, Department of Higher Education, Dr. N. Saravana Kumar, Joint Secretary
(ICC), Department of Higher Education, Smt. Darshana Dabral, Joint Secretary and Financial Advisor -
IFD, Ministry of Human Resource Development. Thanks are due to all officials of International
Cooperation Cell of Higher Education, MHRD for their support extended throughout the year.

As Director of SICI’s India Office, on behalf of my colleagues, | assure you the best of our efforts in the
coming year.

Dr. Prachi Kaul
Director, SICI




Executive Council 2018-19

Prof. Faizan Mustafa, President

Prof. John Reid, Vice President/President Elect

Prof. Anil Kumar Mehrotra, Secretary - Treasurer

Prof. Adrijit Goswami, Member - at - Large

Prof. B. S. Ghuman, Member - at - Large

Prof. Madhav Badami, Member - at - Large




Preface

During this year, SICI celebrated the 50t anniversary since its foundation in November 1968. To
mark the occasion, the Institute held events, conducted activities and arranged discussions in
collaboration with its prime stakeholders and funding agencies to further its goal of establishing
institutional linkages and developing collaboration in higher education.

Today the Shastri Institute is at the forefront of creating change in academic and research areas
between India and Canada. With generous and sustained financial support from the Ministry of
Human Resource Development, Government of India, we have created programmes for students
(undergrad onwards), faculty, educational administrators, and academicians by providing them
substantial support and a much-needed platform to pursue their research ambitions. It has
created an environment that naturally promotes interdisciplinary research and education. A big
part of SICI’s strength is collaboration and forging closer relations among member institutions as
well as with partners that are outside of its core membership network.

Several academic events — including workshops, seminars, and lectures — were organized to
ensure that our member institutions were constantly informed and involved and always had a
place to go for advice and help. We opened doors to the private institutions for their
participation, so as to broaden the scope of our reach and activities.

It is our endeavor to provide students and faculty with the best possible experience and exposure
to enhance their knowledge and scope of research. The high level of collaboration among Indian
and Canadian member institutions, governments, stakeholders and educational partners has
resulted in enhanced engagement, impact, and excellence, at a level that we intend to maintain
and surpass over time.

All in all, 2018-19 was a year on which we look back with satisfaction, in which the Institute
achieved its key objectives and further strengthened its standing both qualitatively and
quantitatively.




Engaging India and Canada: Mutual Interests, Commitment &
Benefits

Events, Conferences, Seminars

During the past year, in celebrating the 50th anniversary of its foundation, SICI made strides in
fulfilling the central mission of attracting high quality students, research scholars, educational
administrators and faculty from both the countries through its range of activities spread

throughout the year.

“Engaging India and Canada: Challenges of Sustainable Development Goals”

With a view to strengthening and promoting Canadian and Indian scholarship, boosting bi-
national networking, training, institutional collaboration, and creating mentorship opportunities,
the Institute, under its flagship series of Engaging India and Canada, organized a two-day
conference titled “Engaging India and Canada: Challenges of Sustainable Development Goals” on
8-9 June, 2018, with support from the Ministry of Human Resource Development (MHRD),

Government of India, at the India International Centre in New Delhi.
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Through panel sessions, the conference discussed the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and

their targets, covering SDG thematic areas such as Community Well-Being, Reducing

Inequalities, Improving Health, Sustainable Energy Development and Environmental

Sustainability, and considered two divides that constrain current SDG scholarship and discourse:

one between individual
countries such as Canada
and India, as each
addresses the challenges
of the SDGs, and the other
separating academic
disciplines and categories.
The  conference  also
brought together

members of the

interdisciplinary network of

SICl-affiliated researchers in Canada and India, with the goal of overcoming the divisions between

disciplinary and purely national approaches to sustainable development. It provided a platform

for a new cadre of researchers from India and Canada who utilized the opportunity by presenting

their academic and research work and by exploring existing and potential collaborations between

ENGAGING INDUA AN CAMAD,
CHALLENGES OF SUSTAIRABLE DEVELDTMINT G0ALY
Funird ¥ Hintary o S * -
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Indian and Canadian universities and
research institutes.

This was the latest in a series of SICI
conferences that have been well received
over the years because of their ability to
create Canada-India linkages of lasting
value. That, this year, the Institute
received as many as 273 abstracts from

114 institutions on eight themes, out of




which 58 were selected for presentation at the conference, demonstrated clearly the degree of

expertise and commitment throughout its wide network of operation.

4 )

“Shastri Institute has done amazing work in last five decades and
plays an important role in also being ambassador for both Canada
and India. It is the center of promoting academic and cultural ties
between India and Canada and is an important stakeholder in
Higher Education Cooperation MoU between India and Canada.”-
H.E. Nadir Patel, High Commissioner for Canada to India at SICI

Qonference. June 2018 /

Eminent guests such as Dr. Ashok Kumar Jain, Advisor on Rural and Sustainable Development to

NITI Aayog (who also delivered the keynote address on the occasion), His Excellency Nadir Patel,
High Commissioner of Canada to India, and Dr. N. Saravana Kumar, Joint Secretary, Higher
Education, Ministry, Human Resource Development, congratulated the Institute for celebrating
its Golden Jubilee year and praised its outstanding role in expanding and promoting the
educational relationship between Canada and India through generating opportunities for student

and faculty exchanges, academic and cultural ties.

Twelve sessions over a
span of one and a half
days were conducted,
during which papers were
presented by the 58
presenters from both

India and Canada.

12




Launching the Golden Jubilee Celebrations

Showcasing the high standards
maintained by the Institute,
and in commemoration of the
Golden Jubilee Year in 2018,
SICl organized a ‘Golden Jubilee
Events and Activities’ inaugural
event on June 10, 2018, which

officially launched the vyear-

long celebrations throughout

the year with the aim of
highlighting the grant programmes, outreach activities, events, and institutional that are at the
core of its achievements. The Hon. Dr. Satya Pal Singh, Minister of State for the Human Resource
Department, Government
of India, as the chief
guest, inaugurated SICI's
golden  jubilee logo
designed by Mr. Bibhu
Kalyan Nayak, a PhD
Student from the Centre
for Energy & Environment
of Malaviya National

Institute of Technology,

Jaipur.
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“Let us orient the present education system in such a way that it
revolves around the holistic development of a human being.” -
Hon'ble Dr. Satya Pal, Former Union Minister of State for MHRD

Celebrations continue....

SICI’s efforts to foster partnerships and opportunities have led to exceptional collaborations over
the years, and the well-executed funding programmes, constant facilitation and follow-ups of the
dialogues, roundtables and partnerships with government, institutions, organizations and

businesses continue apace.

“SICI’s access to Indian and Canadian knowledge hubs &
research institutions, civil societies, not-for-profit sector and
the two governments, gives it the unmatched networking
advantage. SICI provides the perfect model for developing the
real partnerships between the academic and research
communities of Canada and India. SICI should be playing an
even larger role in bringing together the community of
Indophiles and creating research on the aspects of India-
Canada partnerships of most relevance to Canadian
sociologists, scientists, and business.” — H.E. Vikas Swarup,
Higher Commissioner of India to Canada

Accordingly, in continuation of the celebrations, an event on the theme, “50 Years of Canada-
India Partnership: The Shastri Institute,” was organized by SICI on November 26, 2018 at
Parliament Hill in Ottawa. The event not only highlighted the roles and achievements of SICI but
also showcased the positive impacts of SICI-funded projects over the past 50 years. Shastri

Institute alumni, Sankha Bhattacharjee, Dipankar Mandal, Victoria Sheldon, Ramanpreet Kaur,

14




and Philip Lagace made poster presentations to demonstrate the cumulative impacts of their
projects in the fields of Electronics and
Communication Engineering, Remote
Sensing and GIS, Medical Anthropology,
Language and Literatures, and Religion
and Cultures respectively. Prominent
public figures such as His Excellency Vikas

Swarup, High Commissioner of India to

Canada, Hon. Minister Bardish Chagger,
Hon. Deepak Obhrai, Hon. Elizabeth
May, Hon. Kamal Khera, Hon. Ramesh
Sangha, Hon. Andy Fillmore, Hon.
Robert Oliphant, Hon. Bob Saroya, Hon.
Omar Alghabra, and Hon. Darshan Kang
among others, attended the event and

praised SICI’s role in fostering Canada-

India relations.

ﬁICI has played a great part in growing and developing ourh

and cooperation with both governments. SICI has promoted
scholar activities among the bi-national research and academia
between India and Canada through development studies,
sustainability, science, and technology. Our Government
recognizes the impact that SICl has made to the Indo-Canadian
community as well as to our country as a whole. Thank you for the
work that SICI does which just will not go unnoticed. On behalf of
The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau and on behalf of the
Government of Canada, Congratulations on fifty years and our best
for fifty more years.” - Hon. Bardish Chagger, Leader of the

{overnment in the House of Commons /

15




Special Lecture on Gandhi and the Quest for Truth

To mark the 150th anniversary of the birth of Mahatma Gandhi and in recognition of the meeting
of the Canada-India Joint Working Group on higher education, SICI organized a special lecture
event in the Shaw Centre, Ottawa, on February 26th, 2019. The special lecture entitled “Gandhi
and the Quest for Truth” was delivered by His Excellency Vikas Swarup, High Commissioner of

India to Canada.

It was a matter of pride for the Institute when
Jayesh M. Sonawane, a Research Scholar &
Project Scientist from IIT Bombay and also a
recipient of a Shastri Research Student
Fellowship (SRSF) in the Doctoral scholar
category, received the prestigious “Excellence
in Ph.D. Research Award 2016-2018" at the
hands of Honourable Shri Narendra Modi,

Prime Minister of India on 11th August, 2018.

“I' am thankful to SICI & SICI staff for constant support during my tenure. Without SRSF and your
support, this would have not possible. Therefore, credit goes to SRSF and SICL.” - Jayesh M.
Sonawane, IIT Bombay

16




Canada-India Joint Working Group on Higher Education meeting in

Ottawa, February 2019

Canada-Intia
Joint Working Group on
Higher Edycation
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Creating Collaboration Among Institutions

Enabling & Establishing Partnerships: Institutional Linkages &

Outreaches

SICI is committed to bringing its member institutions together to share their expertise and

knowledge by means of meetings, discussions, and seminars, to discuss partnerships, ideas,

challenges and opportunities. These events have been productive on a global scale, as the

following examples demonstrate.

Visiting Alberta

To promote engagement in the related fields of
energy and sustainable development, a
delegation of 23 general managers of India’s Oil
& Natural Gas Commission (ONGC) visited
Calgary, Alberta, on 16 April 2018 to study,
explore and understand Alberta’s energy-
related educational, research and industrial
activities. As a part of their enrollment in a

Leadership Programme at the Indian Institute of

18




Management Calcutta, in Kolkata, the ONGC delegates were also accompanied by three faculty
members of [IM-C. The visit was co-sponsored by the Shastri Institute and the University of
Calgary where Dr. Anil Mehrotra, Professor, Department of Chemical and Petroleum Engineering
in the Schulich School of Engineering, Dr. Jaydeep Balakrishnan, Professor, Director, Canadian
Centre C-ASL, both from University of Calgary, Ms. Jackie Forrest, ARC Energy Research Institute,
Mr. Adam Roe, Alberta Energy Regulator, Government of Alberta assisted by Mr. Doug Koroluk
and Prof. Allan Ingelson, Faculty of Law, HSB & SEDV Program, organized a series of state-of-the-
art presentations covering various aspects of Alberta’s
oil and gas energy industry and a tour of petroleum-
related research laboratories in CCIT at University of
Calgary for the visiting delegation.

Alberta is homeland to one of the world’s largest
unconventional oil deposits, while its diverse resource

portfolio also includes natural gas, conventional oil, and

minerals. In the last few years, Canada and India have
been engaged in boosting each other’s visibility through
political interaction, and enhancing exchanges in such areas as investment, energy and mining,

higher education, research, and tourism.

Interactive Session between University of Calgary delegates and SICI’s Indian Member

Institutions

An Interactive Session for the visiting delegates of the University of
Calgary with SICI’s Indian member institutions was organized by the
Institute on 26th July, 2018. Prof. Janaka Ruwanpura, Vice-Provost
(International), University of Calgary, and the members of Canadian
Members’ Council met with representatives of a number of Indian

member institutions to develop and strengthen the institutional

collaborations. Prof. Ruwanpura discussed the possibilities to engage

19




in the Articulation Programme. A day before this interaction, India office had also organized
similar interactive sessions for the delegates with the All India Council for Technical Education
(AICTE), the Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerec and Industry (FICCI), and other
stakeholders. Prof. Anil D. Sahasrabudhe, Chairperson, AICTE met with the delegates and

discussed greater cooperation between the University of Calgary and institutions governed by
AICTE.

Left & below: Prof. John Reid, Department of
History, Saint Mary's University, Halifax, Canada
addressing students and faculty at the Centre for

Canadian Studies, Jadavpur University

20




Expanding and Building New Partnerships

SICI's India office facilitated a number of
delegations during the first quarter of 2019. A
delegation from the University of Alberta led by
Dr. Cen Huang, Interim Vice-Provost and
Associate Vice-President (International) visited
SICI’s office on 9™ January 2019. The delegation
conducted an extended discussion of ways to
build further on existing relationships with
Indian institutions and to take up joint
programmes and initiatives to enhance
reciprocal movement of students and faculty
between India and Alberta. Impressed by the
funding programmes of SICI, the delegation

vowed to take full advantage of the association

21




with SICI, and to promote on their campus Shastri grants and awards as well as initiatives such as

like GIAN and SPARC.

Similarly, another visiting delegation
from the University of Guelph was led by
Dr. Charlotte Yates, Provost and Vice-
President (Academic), Dr. Daniel Atlin,
Vice President (External), Mr. Ray
Darling, University Registrar and Dr.
Sharda Srinivasan, Director India Centre.
The group visited SICI’s India office on 29

January, 2019, and met with

representatives of a number of SICl's

Indian member institutions with the intention to develop and strengthen institutional

collaborations. SICI also facilitated meetings for the Guelph delegates with Indian member

institutions located in other Indian cities such as Chandigarh, Bangalore and Mumbai, so that

they had ample opportunities at their to explore and establish linkages for a stronger ties in the

future.

Advancing Cooperation in STEM

22

In the year 2018, SICI initiated a dialogue
encompassing lIT Ropar, IIT Gandhinagar, and
Canadian member institutions. During the
Golden Jubilee celebrations, so as to
encourage collaborations and engagements,
SICI also hosted a Roundtable for these
institutions to understand and leverage on

each other’s expertise and strengths to build




partnerships in research and academics. As a result of this dialogue and interaction, IIT Ropar
signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the University of Calgary, Canada, in Ropar
on 11 February 2019. The MoU facilitates collaboration and cooperation between the two
institutions in the areas of STEM, student and faculty exchange, and joint projects and
partnerships. The two institutions agreed to cooperate in developing joint research programmes
for faculty and students, and designing joint research conferences, seminars and symposia. In the
near future, a delegation from IIT Ropar will be visiting the University of Calgary to explore

opportunities in these areas.

Discover India, Discover Canada: How Do I Get
There?

Dissemination,

A %:7_) Orientation
-2t

Meetings
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During this past year, the SICI Director and the
President participated in many networking
engagements in both India and Canada. From
networking events to dissemination sessions and
more, SICI led a number of knowledge-sharing
activities, aiming to increase academic mobility
and networking for our members across India and

Canada.

Shastri Institute funding programmes are
designed to enable Indian and Canadian scholars,
faculty and academicians to deepen their

knowledge about the area of their study along

with the geopolitics, culture, economic ecosystem
of India and Canada. Through dissemination

sessions, SICI provides information about its

programmes, so as to assist award-winners to be

well prepared to reach their research potential and use the funding opportunity to optimize the
award received from SICI's programmes. Our Orientation
sessions are intended to help scholars and students get
adjusted to the new place where they will be spending
time in research, academic, and social activities. The
orientation may range from one day to two days and
include sessions that are designed to cover various aspects

and inclusions in the relevant grant programme.

During 2018-19 two orientation programmes were held

for Shastri scholars at the India Habitat Centre, New Delhi
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in which awardees were informed about many aspects of Canada covering important topics such
as Quebec: Society, Life and Culture; Canadian Social Issues; Indigenous Matters; Gender Equality
and Education in Canada; Multicultural
Diversity; Cultural Experience while in

Canada; and the Canadian Economy.

Right: During the fall, Dr. Prachi Kaul,
Director, SICI, met with Dr. Siyaram
Pandey, Professor, Department of
Chemistry & Biochemistry, University of

Windsor, Ontario, Canada and a group

of students. Dr. Pandey is also the
Founder Director and Chief Scientific Officer of the Windsor Botanical Therapeutics Inc., Toronto.
His group is known for their discovery of the novel natural anti-cancer compound Pancratistatin,
and Dandelion Root extract which is in clinical trial for blood cancer. Dr. Kaul also met with Prof.
Jeff Berryman, Acting Provost and Vice-President Academic, Distinguished University Professor
and Professor of Law, University of Windsor, Canada and discussed mutual areas of collaboration

in research and academia.

Addressing Dissemination session at the University of Guelph, Ontario, Canada on November

29, 2018, Dr. Kaul discussed SICI opportunities with a large group of scholars & faculty.
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Dr. Kaul with Dr. Julie Ann McMullin, Vice-Provost
and Associate Vice-President (International), Dr.
Nandi Bhatia, Associate Dean (Research), Lise
Laporte, Senior Director International at Western
University, Ontario, Canada.
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Left: International Conference
on “Convergence and
Divergence - Indian Literature
in a Global Context - Canadian
and Indian Perspectives was
hosted by the Shastri Institute
and the Dept. of English,
Pondicherry University from 30
- 31 August, 2018

To mark fifty years of SICI, the

Institute held a Joint Meeting of

the Indian Members’ Council
and the Canadian Members’
Council at the India Habitat

Centre in Delhi on Saturday,

June 10, 2018. A large number
of IMC member representatives

attended the meeting following

the annual conference. SICI’s
year-round programmes and financial activities (India and Canada), as well as other strategic

matters, were discussed during the joint meeting.
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Fellowships, Grants & Awards

The year 2018-19 was an extremely busy year in terms of the programmes administered by the
SICI office. Our internship and fellowship programmes provide opportunities for individuals to
gain first-hand experience in India or Canada. We witnessed active participation from our
member institutions from India and Canada, especially from new institutions. Data reflects that
close to 630 applications were received throughout the year under all the programmes and a
total of 106 grants were awarded to the scholars and faculty. Details pertaining to specific

programmes are as follows:

Shastri Institutional Collaborative Research Grant (SICRG): Fostering and
Enhancing Linkages

The SICRG is a true example of bi-national institutional collaborative research in R&D, which
invites applications from faculty members and academicians of all disciplines from SICI's
Canadian and Indian Member Institutions. The institutions with one another to pursue mutually

interesting and beneficial research for a period of two years. Eight SICRG projects were initiated
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in 2018-1019, covering broad thematic areas in Environmental Sciences, Urban Planning and
Design, Biomedical Sciences, Gender and Sexuality Studies, Humanoid Robotic Studies, Library
and Museum Studies, Agricultural and Food Engineering, and Business. The details of the

awardees are available in annexure 1.

As an example of the difference that can be made through a SICRG grant, perinatal mental health
Is a growing concern in modern India, especially in the rural parts of the country. Realising the
need to address this challenge, with SICRG’s funding, Dr. Shahirose Premiji, PhD, RN, FAAN, York
University, Ontario, Canada and Dr. Rachana Johri, PhD, Ambedkar University, Delhi, India joined
hands to initiate research on the topic of ‘Bridging the Human Resource Gap: Developing a Lay-

Counsellor Workforce to Address Perinatal Mental Health in Rural Rajasthan, India (BHRG)'.

Above: Community Outreach & Village screening for maternal depression

The project’s overall objective is to develop an evidence-based approach to workforce
development for a pre - & post - natal mental health intervention aimed at low-income,
vulnerable women in rural district of Sri Ganganagar, Rajasthan. The aim is also to inform this
approach with principles of implementation science and community-based participatory
research. With their combined efforts, and also benefitting greatly from collaborations with
students and professionals in India, Canada and United Kingdom, today the researchers have
achieved the development of a mental health counselling manual, the recruitment, training, and
deployment of lay counsellors, and the completion of the first set of data collection for their

study.
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Alongside collaborations, the team also visited villages in Rajasthan and began a dialogue about
mental iliness, so as better to understand the local population’s views on the issue of depression,
especially in the context of pregnancy. As a result, the team now plans to start with counselling

sessions for the affected patients.

“On behalf of our team, | want to take this opportunity to thank the Shastri Indo-Canadian
Institute for funding our project. A special thank you to Dr. Prachi Kaul and Reshma for the
support, and guidance provided. We have experienced an extraordinary level of
collaboration during the first year of the project and have developed some important
partnerships. The project has allowed us to host a number of graduate and undergraduate
students as volunteers or to fulfill degree requirements. We have also been able to host
skilled professionals who have volunteered their time for the project”.

— Dr. Shahirose Premiji, PhD, RN, FAAN, York University, Ontario, Canada

Shastri Mobility Programme (SMP)

Through SMP, SICI presents a unique opportunity for faculty members and educational
administrators from its Canadian and Indian member institutions to study and learn best
practices through exposure to, respectively, Indian or Canadian institutions. This programme
allows member institutions to explore the Canadian/Indian education system, while benefiting
from a culturally diverse faculty, with a chance to exchange ideas, observe and adapt different
styles of teaching. During the year, 15 awards were granted, covering varied subjects such as
Power Electronics, Energy and Energy Storage, Microbiology, Sociology, Environmental Science
and Climate, Life Sciences, Photonics Science and Engineering, Economics, and Information

Science. The details of the awardees are available in annexure 2.
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As an example, Dr. Tabassum Khan of SVKM’s Dr.
Bhanuben Nanavati College of Pharmacy, with an
objective to enhance teaching and learning
practices, found her inspiration at Laurentian
University (LU), Canada where she derived
valuable insights through exposure to its academic
processes and student learning systems, by
associating with the university’s Department of

Chemistry and Biochemistry.

“I am immensely thankful to the Shastri Institute
for awarding me this fellowship and providing a
window to obtain experiential learning at
Laurentian University and a stepping stone to
further strengthen this learning at University of
Alberta”. - Dr. Tabassum Khan, Professor & HOD,
Dept. of Pharm Chem and Quality Assurance,
SVKM’s Dr. Bhanuben Nanavati College of
Pharmacy

Left: Laboratory session in progress at the

Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry

Equipped with the knowledge and experience
gained by attending laboratory sessions,
interacting with the professors, laboratory
assistants,

technologists, teaching

undergraduate and graduate students, the

opportunity also provided her a platform to share curriculum, pedagogy methods, teaching-

learning processes and evaluation systems of her college with them.

Left: Dr. Khan (extreme right) with the Lab staff

Dr. Khan now wishes to review and recommend
revision of student protocols used in the
laboratories of her college so as to amplify the
competitiveness and learning of students. She
expects this to be achieved through revisiting

the student learning online portal to factor in
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new attributes such as student academic summary, student transcripts, online evaluation of
quizzes and assignments etc. As a long-term impact of this visit, she hopes that both the institutes
(her college and LU) start a joint publication of articles, and working papers, as well as joint

research proposal submissions to government funding agencies of both countries.

During the course of her Fellowship, Dr Khan also had a chance to stay with a Canadian family,
which gave her the exposure to understanding Canadian family system, culture, food habits,
education preferences and lifestyles. This has further broadened her outlook in terms of

developing understanding and harmony by taking the best of two worlds.

Shastri Research Student Fellowship (SRSF)

Representing the highest number of award-winners of all the SICI programmes, the SRSF is an
immensely popular programme that is open to Master’s, Doctoral and Post-Doctoral scholars in
India or Canada to undertake research in areas in which they have a desire to gain research
experience in the other country with a view to broadening their understanding of research
techniques, principles, and interdisciplinary approaches. Such an experience provides invaluable
insights into the nature of the bi-national academic community and often results in lifelong

friendships and a broad bi-national professional network.

A total of eighteen, nine and sixteen awards were granted in the Doctoral, Post-Doctoral and

Student categories, respectively.

Doctoral Fellowship

This fellowship enables Doctoral students to access relevant research material as well as to
conduct research in India or Canada that will subsequently help them to get their degree. In 2018-
19, awards were granted in the areas of Mechanical Engineering, Computer Science and

Engineering, Electrical Engineering, Rural Development, Home Science, Law, Biotechnology,
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Visual Arts, Remote Sensing and GIS, Political Science, and Botany. The details of the awardees

are available in Annexure 3.

Manoijit Ray of IIT Kharagpur, for example, pursued “Behavior Influencing Energy Gateway
Transformation in Canada - An Involved Exploration” at the University of Toronto. Emphasis was
placed on leaving an inefficient, demand-driven electricity ecosystem behind while embracing
consumer-engaging,  resource-anchored, responsible generation and consumption.
Understanding the intricacies of behavioral economic decision-making forms the bedrock of such

a foundational transformation.

Left: Nova Scotia Solar

Powered Car Charging Station

Moreover, as per the
scholarship and reflection on

the outcome of facilities

visited in Canada, energy

affordability may find the
much-needed traction in the astute combination of technology adoption and prosumer
awareness. The work undertaken forms the foundation for further research and will potentially
lead investigators from both countries into innovative research contributions. This research will
drive cleaner energy source penetration in India, extend electricity access to the impoverished
global billions under India’s leadership and benefit all policymakers in finding a method to

moderate electricity demand even in the face of unfavorable price elasticity.

Post-Doctoral Fellowship

The Post-Doctoral fellowship is awarded to scholars from India and Canada who have been

awarded a Ph.D. degree and wish to pursue further research in India or Canada. SICl awarded
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grantsin diverse subjects such as Metallurgical and Materials Engineering, Environmental Studies

and Forestry, Chemistry, Biomedical Sciences, Environmental Science, and Climate Change and

Social Sciences. The details of the awardees are available in Annexure 4.

Bringing Home the Benefits of Sea Buckthorn Berries in Functional Foods

To boost research in the safety aspect of the usage of functional food ingredients, Dr. Swapnil
Jaiswal, Indian Institute of Technology Delhi and a recipient of SRSF grant (post-doc), undertook
research in the extraction of functional food ingredients for food safety at the Department of

Chemical and Biological Engineering, College of Engineering, University of Saskatchewan.

Left: Official tour to Indian Head
Agricultural Research Station,
Regina (Canada) for collecting
sea buckthorn berries for

experimental purposes.

Dr. Jaiswal focused his research

on the extraction of sea

buckthorn berries, which are
underutilized due to their limited availability but have a rich nutritional profile. For the purpose
of extraction, he was able to carry out experiments in a leading-edge laboratory, which was fully
facilitated with petroleum and energy-based research containing varied types of extraction
equipment such as High-Pressure, High Temperature Reactor, supercritical fluid extraction unit

and physicochemical characterization instruments.

Acknowledging SICI for its valuable support upon successful completion of his fellowship, Dr.

Jaiswal hopes that the current research work will help to increase the utilization of the sea




buckthorn fruit for enhancing the shelf life of food in future applications and, therefore, he plans
to extend his present research activities with his current institution for study of further beneficial

applications of this remarkable but underutilized fruit.

Student Fellowship

This fellowship is awarded to students who wish to pursue a course (module/part of a course),
or do an internship at a Canadian or Indian university that is within the SICI network. The awards
were granted in a wide range of areas such as Health Sciences, Biology, Physics, History, Civil
Engineering, Neuroscience, Gender Studies, Religion and Religious Studies, Corporate Finance,
Applied Geology, and Computer Science and Engineering. The details of the awardees are

available in annexure 5.

Under the mobility programme at o _ _ _
“This internship exposure in the field of WWT was much

the  University of  British | peneficial in my long-term career goals and | would
Columbia, Canada, Ravichandra | continue with my work in this field by applying for a
doctorate at UBCO. As a member of mobility program under
SICI 2018, | would be always thankful for this opportunity
student, was able to work with and would be happy to share my experiences and
knowledge.” — Ravichandra C. Patil, IIT Guwahati

Patil, an IIT Guwahati Master’s

the Bioreactor Technology Group
(BTG) on the project titled “Biochemical Methane Potential Assay for Biochar Selection for
Bioaugumentation in Anaerobic Digestion”. His work dealt with the study of wastewater and
sludge treatment processes using different pretreatment techniques for the enhancement of
biomethane production. During this fellowship, he was also able to visit a regional plant, and
learn about the infrastructure currently in place for the effective and sustainable disposal of the
urban wastewater. SICI's fellowship helped him with the opportunity to interact with the
research experts in this field and gain technical insights. He looks forward to utilizing these gains
and working on the challenges associated with the wastewater treatment practices and the
revival of the water drainage system in India. The laboratory facilities, work culture and the

valuable research output from the BTG lab has gained him experience wherein he would like to
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contribute towards improving the conditions of the drainage system and urban wastewater

management in India.

1| Left: 876 Group, UBC,

T[ Canada

Shastri Student Internship Project (SSIP)

SSIP offers students, undergraduate and graduate (Master’s), from SICI’s Canadian and Indian
member institutions, uniquely transformative cultural and educational opportunities in a foreign
country. The three-month placement in Indian or Canadian member institutions not only
encourages the international mobility of Canadian and Indian students but also enriches their
multi-cultural understanding, networking, confidence, and overall exposure. It provides them
with first-hand experience of living and studying in India or Canada, thus also enhancing their

knowledge and their research capacities.

Seven SSIP awards were granted to students of Indian and Canadian SICI member institutions to
undertake a three-month internship. The broad areas covered under this project were
Experimental Medicine, Print Journalism, Humanities, Aerospace Engineering, Health
Psychology, Computational Fluid Dynamics, Material Science, and Nano Science. The details of

the awardees are available in Annexure 6.
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Shastri Programme Development Grant (SPDG)

The Shastri Institute is at the forefront of the rapidly changing research ecosystem in India, and
in this context the Shastri Programme Development Grant (SPDG) is designed to encourage
scholarly and professional academic activities that will expand knowledge about India and/or
Canada. The primary objective is to encourage scholarly and professional academic activities with
a view to expanding knowledge about India or Canada at universities in the other country. To
accomplish this objective, grants are awarded to conduct activities such as conferences,
symposia, workshops, lecture series, and theme-based orientation programmes for students.
Seven awards were granted during the 2018-19 year, four to Canadian and three to Indian
member institutions, thus supporting a variety of productive activities. The details of the

awardees are available in Annexure 7.

Developing a Collaborative Programme on Current and Future Implications of Ageing and
Health

It was under this grant and with the support of Department of Science and Technology (DST) of
the Government of India, a two-day national workshop on “Ageing and Health” was organized by
the School of Medical Sciences,
University of Hyderabad (UoH) from
6t to 71 August, 2018, with Dr. M.
Varalakshmi, Assistant Professor,
School of Medical Science and Prof. P.
Prakash Babu, Dean, School of
Medical Sciences as the organizing

team in collaboration with Dr. Shanthi

Johnson, Professor and Dean, School

of Public Health, University of Alberta, Canada.
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Set against the backdrop of the ongoing “India Ageing Study (IAS)” pilot programme, which aims
to examine the outcome of functional assessment and exercise programmes, the workshop was
a first of its kind to take an interdisciplinary and integrative approach to transform knowledge
into action on ageing and health. Using examples and various case studies from India and Canada,
it was agreed that the ever-increasing proportion of elderly people in the population was putting
healthcare providers and systems, as well as families, under severe pressure. The workshop
produced some very fruitful and important topics for further cooperation, particularly in the
formation of multi-faceted approach on the neurology of ageing, review of the life span, and
developments with a research focus on ageing.

Due to the efforts of Shastri Institute through the
facilitation of SPDG, the pilot programme will soon
be initiated in selected communities in Telangana
state, India, with Dr. Varalakshmi as programme
coordinator, in collaboration with Prof. Johnson. The
pilot study will aim at examining the outcome of a
home-based exercise programme on the
compliance, functional performance and perceived

wellbeing among Indian older adults.

Shastri Publication Grant (SPG)

The purpose of this grant is to encourage scholarly publications such as books of critical
scholarship, articles, and policy papers. This is a competitive grant for Indian and Canadian
members, and is designed to assist publication on topics relevant to the themes where Shastri
Institute promotes research. Open to faculty, researchers and students, the programme provides
grants for the publication of monographs, collective works, critical editions of books and
bibliographies, reference works and documentary collections, working papers, policy papers and

translation of scholarly works in Hindi, English or French languages only. The Institute awarded
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four grants during the year, covering themes such as Anthropology, Sociology, History and

Political Science. The details of the awardees are available in Annexure 8.

Shastri Membership Development Grant (SMDG)

The desired purpose of SMDG is to publicize and promote SICI mandates as well as programmes
and grants offered by SICI Canada and India offices to its Indian member institutions. It assists
the institutions in organizing events to support the promotion and expansion of SICI’s activities.
Applications are also encouraged for activities and programmes such as lecture series,
workshops, film shows, students’ competitions, and celebrations of important days. Through
SMDG, four grants were awarded in 2018-19 to institutions that organized theme-based activities
covering areas such as Career Counselling, Blockchain Technology, Mass Media &
Communication and Indo-Canadian Studies. The details of the awardees are available in

Annexure 9.

Shastri Scholar Travel Subsidy Grant (SSTSG)

The SSTSG programme supports faculty members, doctoral and, or post-doctoral students, with
travel subsidies to participate in conferences, workshops, seminars and academic meetings in
partner countries (India or Canada) that are intended to establish institutional and scholarly
linkages. The main objective of this programme is to facilitate and help enhance the personal and

professional growth of participating scholars and institutions.

There were nine awards granted under SSTSG to the students and faculty members of Indian and
Canadian SICI member institutions to promote academic linkage and mobility between India and
Canada including knowledge exchange, partnerships and promoting educational cooperation
between these countries. The activities revolved around a variety of key topics, dealing with

United Nations and Sustainable Development, Progression of Women in Non-Traditional
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Occupations, Indigenous Studies, Atmospheric Sciences, Wastewater Management, Ethnic

Minorities in Canada, Physics, and Chemistry.

For example, the SSTSG fund provided Jai Prakash Chaubey, a Post-Doctoral fellow from
Dalhousie University, Canada, the opportunity to meet faculty members at IIT Delhi and to make
a presentation there on the topic of fog and visibility. By obtaining significant knowledge of
smog/fog data analysis and by learning newer analysis tools through this collaboration, he is now
looking to share a proposal for scientific research of fog in Delhi. The details of the awardees are

available in Annexure 10.

Shastri Membership Development Fund (SMDF)

The purpose of SMDF is to publicize and promote SICI mandates to its Canadian member
institutions, as well as programmes and grants offered by SICI’s Canadian and Indian offices.
During the year, six SMDF grants were awarded for organizing important events in member
institutions, promoting Canada-India collaborations as well as SICI Canada-India programmes.

The SMDF is a year-round program. The details of the awardees are available in Annexure 11.

Right:  Participants  discussing  SICI
programmes during the roundtable

discussion at the University of Victoria

With the help of SMDF funding, Jessica

Worsley, International Grants Facilitator,

University of Victoria (Uvic), Canada,

hosted the “SICI/South Asia Global Forum Seminar and Reception” with the objective of providing
an overview of the UVic South Asia Global Forum, a collective of faculty members from across

disciplines whose work focuses on South Asia, several of whom maintain an active research




agenda in India; its achievements over the

2017-18 academic year and planned “We are grateful to have received SMDF
support for this event. The process was smooth
and the Membership Coordinator was very
well as a presentation on SICI itselftne | helpful.” - Jessica Worsley, International
Grants Facilitator, University of Victoria
(Uvic), Canada

programming activities for 2018-19, as

Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute.

A key feature and highlight of the event

was a fireside chat between Dr. Supriya Routh, Faculty of Law, and Dr. Neilesh Bose, Department
of History, on Dr. Routh's current research on labour law and the informal economy in India,
followed by a round table discussion. To highlight SICI’'s mission, mandate and activities as well
as current and ongoing funding programmes, the event also featured a slideshow discussing SICI’s
Publication and Travel Grant schemes as well as Student Research Fellowships in future funding
cycles. Looking at the success of the event and the amount of interest generated amongst the
participants, the University plans to host similar events each fall in order to promote SICl at UVic
and strengthen the local community of scholars interested in research on or collaboration with

India.

Facilitation Services - Ensuring Support & Success

For past five decades, the Shastri Institute has emerged as a bridge that links scholars, faculty,
and academicians to Indian and Canadian institutions. Besides extending administrative support,
through its facilitation services, the Institute provides access and linkages to Indian Members’
Council (IMC) & Canadian Members’ Council (CMC) institutions, organizes academic events such
as conferences, seminars, workshops, and consultations in collaboration with IMC & CMC. and
activities under the general designation, ‘Engage India, Engage Canada.’ SICI can also arrange
meetings for Canadian and Indian senior government officials with each other (federal and
provincial), and conduct online examinations on behalf of Canadian universities. Also, its

Canadian Studies Resource Library, at the India office, facilitates research on Canadian studies.
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GLOBAL INITIATIVE OF ACADEMIC NETWORKS
(GIAN)

Global Initiative for Academic Networks (GIAN)

Global Initiative for Academic Networks (GIAN) in higher education is an initiative of Ministry of
Human Resource and Development (MHRD), Government of India, and its goal is to tap the talent pool
of scholars, scientists and entrepreneurs internationally to encourage their engagement with the
institutions of higher education in India, so as to augment the country’s existing academic
resources, accelerate the pace of quality reform, and elevate India’s scientific and technological

capacity to global excellence.

SICl'is proud to have been chosen and authorized by MHRD to manage the Canadian component
of GIAN programme by disseminating and promoting the programme in Canada. Through this
programme, SICI facilitates the participation of Canadian faculty, scientists and entrepreneurs in
Indian universities/research institutions with the objective of helping these institutions learn
about modern pedagogic practices and boosting research in leading-edge technologies to build
stronger academic networks between the two countries. For the past four years, the Institute
has been promoting the GIAN programme in India and Canada, including encouraging Indian
institutions and faculties to collaborate and request their collaborators from Canada to utilize the
opportunity provided by MHRD. During 2018-19, the Institute extended its facilitation to 16 GIAN
recipients by helping in arranging workshops/consultations/talks for them at Indian member
institutions. As a result, close to 20 Indian member institutions have expressed a keen interest in

hosting these recipients to enable interaction of students and faculty with them.
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®PARC

Scheme for Promotion of Academic and Research Collaboration

Scheme for Promotion of Academic and Research Collaboration (SPARC)

This programme supports research projects that link Indian universities with first-rate institutions
in 28 countries of the world, including Canada. It provides for extended visitation back and forth
by students and faculty, and aims at yielding research results that will have either
fundamental/theoretical significance or application potential, or both. SICI takes pride in being
the conduit through which these ground-breaking projects are brought to bear in all Canadian
contexts. The Institute facilitated the first meeting of Canadian recipients of the SPARC
Programme with MHRD officials on February 28, 2019 in Ottawa. This interaction was held on
the sidelines of the Joint Working Group on Higher Education between Government of India and
Government of Canada from February 26-28 2019, and supported the overall objective of

enabling productive academic cooperation between India and Canada.
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Below: Canadian recipients of the SPARC in a meeting with MHRD officials in Ottawa, Canada




Annexure 1

SHASTRI INSTITUTIONAL COLLABORATIVE RESEARCH GRANT

Name of the

. Applicant & Co-Ap-pIic.ant & Topic S.Ub.j e‘ft/
No. L. Institution Discipline
Institution
Sridhar Bruce R. Sutherland Dispersed Particle- Engineering
Balasubramanian Director Laden Plumes in
1 Associate Professor Institute of Linearly Stratified
Indian Institute of Geophysical Research Environments
Technology Bombay | University of Alberta
Mohammad Ashraf Girish M. SHAH Role of Poly (ADP- Biomedical
) Professor Head, Laboratory for Ribose) Polymerase-1 Sciences
Jamia Millia Islamia Skin Cancer Research (PARP1) In Hypoxia-
Laval University Induced Thrombosis
Arindam Biswas Zhu Qian Impact of Land-Use Urban
3 Assistant Professor Associate Professor Changes on Water Planning &
Indian Institute of University of Waterloo | Consumption Patternin | Design
Technology, Roorkee Urban Areas
Baharul Islam Rupa Banerjee Gender Diversity in Gender and
Professor and Associate Professor Boardrooms and Sexuality
4 Chairperson Ryerson University Business Schools: Issues | Studies
Indian Institute of in Academia and
Management, Industry from India And
Kashipur Canada
Aditi Gupta T.S. Kumbar Globalization of Library and
Engineering & Librarian Information Literacy: Museum
5 Science Librarian Indian Institute of Exploring the Need for Studies
University of Victoria | Technology, Information Literacy
Gandhinagar Programmes In Canada
And India
Alex Ramirez Serrano | Dilip Kumar Pratihar High Speed Walking Gait | Engineering
Professor Professor Control of a Life Size
6 (Institution: (Institution: Indian Humanoid Robot
University of Calgary) | Institute of Technology | Targeted for Defence
Kharagpur) and Humanitarian Aid
Applications
Harsh Chauhan Jaswinder Singh Comparative Agricultural
Assistant Professor Associate Professor Transcriptomics and & Food
(Institution: Indian (Institution: McGill Functional Genomics for | Engineering
7 Institute of University) High Temperature
Technology, Stress Tolerance in
Roorkee) Garden Pea (Pisum
Sativum L.)
Nimarta Mann Robinder P. Bedi Role of Corporate Social | Business
3 Assistant Professor Associate Professor Responsibility in

(Institution: Panjabi
University)

(Institution: University
of British Columbia)

Addressing Societal
Drug Abuse




Annexure 2
SHASTRI MOBILTY PROGRAMME 2018-19

17 G 2 Title of project/Area of
Applicant & proj Subject Affiliate & Institution
- Interest
Institution
Sandeep Anand Power Electronics for Electrical Praveen Jain
Assistant Professor | Solar PV Integration Engineering Queen's University

Indian Institute of
Technology Kanpur

Soumitra Satapathi | Development of Highly Energy & Edward H. Sargent
Assistant Professor | Efficient and Large Area, | Energy Storage | University of Toronto
Indian Institute of | Air Stable Perovskite

Technology Solar Cells

Roorkee

Shubha Gopal Employment of anti- Microbiology Alan R. Davidson
Associate Professor | CRISPR Strategies to University of Toronto
and Chairperson Improve Phage Therapy

University of Against Staphylococcal

Mysore Infections

Mohar Demystifying Gender French Mathieu Boisvert
Daschaudhuri Roles, Re-writing UQAM

Assistant Professor | Mythology in the Catherine Foisy
Calcutta University | Feminine: A study of UQAM

Francophone Quebec
and Indian Women

Writers.
Bushra Begum RK Human displacement and | Sociology Jennifer Hyndman
Assistant Professor | Gender Responsive York University
University of Kerala | Rehabilitation Practices A Michele Millard
Sociological Analysis with York University
special reference to
women
Vinay Gupta Une etude de la French Laurier Turgeon
Assistant Professor | litterature folklorique Université Laval
English and Foreign | quebecoise (A study of Québec
Languages Folk Literature of
University Quebec)
Ashwani Kumar Comparative Taxonomic and | Botany Selvadurai Dayanandan
Assistant Professor Functional Investigation of Concordia University
Dr.HariSinghGour Plant Microbiome Data
University
Baburajendran Investigation of Emerging | Environmental Allen Britten
Ramaswamy Chemical Contaminants in Science and Cape Breton University
Professor The Environmental Climate DCG Muir
Bharthidasan Matrices Using UPLC- Canada Centre for
University MS/MS And Their Inland Water
Tiruchirappalli Remediation.
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Sushil Misra ResearchCollaborationon | Physics Debamalya Banerjee
Professor of Physics | ContinuousWave(CW)And Indian Institute of
9 Concordia University | Pulsed Electron Technology Kharagpur
Paramagnetic Resonance
(EPR) Research onNovel
Materials
Anurag Gupta TopologicalDefectsinTwo- | Mechanical Marcelo Epstein
10 Associate Professor Dimensional Materials Engineering University of Calgary
Indian Institute of
Technology Kanpur
Venkata Vadali Automatic Modulation of Manufacturing 0. Remus Tutunea-Fatan
Assistant Professor | Input Intensity for Laser Science and Western University
11 | Indian Institute of Polishing of Highly Engineering Bordatchev Evgueni
Technology Undulating Surfaces National Research Council
Gandhinagar of Canada
Ravishankar Rai Advanced Antimicrobial Life Sciences R.E.W. Hancock
Professor Techniques for Designing University of British
12 University of and Developing Novel Columbia
Mysore Broad-Spectrum Antibiotics Silvia T. Cardona
from Peptides and University of Manitoba
Natural Products
Enakshi Sharma Optical Fibre Sensors for | Photonics Science | Raman Kashyap
13 | Professor University | Monitoring of Air Bourn | and Engineering | Université de Montréal
of Delhi Pollutants
Lekha Chakraborty | Public Policy for Gender Economics FrancesWoolleyandLisa
Associate Professor | Equality: Canada And India Mills
National Institute of Carleton University
14 | Public Finance and Robert J Oxoby
Policy University of Calgary
Sonia Laszlo
McGill University
Sabuj Chaudhuri Environmental Adaptation | Information Nirupama Agrawal
15 Assistant Professor | for Socio-Ecological Science York University

University of
Calcutta

Resilience

47




Annexure 3

SHASTRI RESEARCH STUDENT FELLOWSHIP (SRSF): DOCTORAL

S Name of the Proposed Institution/
N‘; Applicant and Topic of Project Discipline University for
: Institution Affiliation
Neha Manav Porphyrin-Lipid Conjugates: | Chemistry Gang Zheng
1 Indian Institute of | An Approach Towards University of Toronto
Technology Developing Cancer
Gandhinagar Theranostics
Shilpa Srimani Organo-Sedimentological Applied Hairuo Qing
Jadavpur Clues in Palaeoclimatic Geology University of Regina
) University Studies of Campanian-
Maastrichitian Sediments:
Ariyalur-Cauvery Basin,
South India
Roshni Mohan Gene Discovery of Trichome | Biotechnology | Ajjamada C.
University of Genes in Cucumber for Its Kushalappa
3 | Agricultural Application in Genome McGill University
Sciences Editing for Cucumber
Bangalore Mosaic Virus Resistance.
Dipankar Mandal | Estimation of Crop Remote Scott Mitchell
Indian Institute of | Biophysical Parameters Sensing & GIS | Carleton University
4 | Technology Using Polarimetric Co-host: Heather
Bombay Synthetic Aperture Radar McNairn Carleton
(SAR) Remote Sensing Data University
Pinaki Gayen Universal and Culture- Visual Arts Dirk Bernhardt -
5 Indian Institute of | Specific Visual Attributes of Walther University of
Technology Emotions in Abstract Toronto
Kharagpur Paintings
Mitali Vyas Deportation Trauma in the | French Chantal Richard
6 Pondicherry novels of Antonine Maillet University of New
University Brinswick,
Roomana Hukil Renewable Energy Trends Political Ambuj D. Sagar, Vipula
7 McMaster in India: Social Perceptions, | Science & Mahesh Chaturvedi
University Current Progress and Indian Institute of
Future Prospects Technology Delhi
Ujjwala Gupta Within ethnic families: Social Work Randy L. Johner
Institute for Social | Parent- child relation University of Regina
8 and Economic among Indian born Claudia Malacrida
Change Canadians and Second- University of
generation Canadians Lethbridge
Pritam Bari Dynamics of serrated end Mechanical Yusuf Altintas
(Institution: mills with variable pitch and | Engineering The University of
9 Indian Institute of | helix British Columbia,
Technology
Kanpur)




Monu Verma Affective sensing based Computer Nizar Bouguila
(Institution: nonverbal behavior analysis | Science & Concordia University
10 Malaviya National | for depression diagnosis Engineering
Institute of
Technology
Jaipur)
Sameer Sharma Thin film nanofabrication of | Electrical Bodh Raj Mehta
11 (Institution: optically transparent touch | Engineering Indian Institute of
University of panel sensors and Technology Delhi
Toronto) microwave circuits
Dibyendu Ghosh Collective Dynamics and Mechanical Ishwar K. Puri
(Institution: Pattern Formation of Janus | Engineering McMaster University
12 | Indian Institute of | Particles with Applied
Technology Magnetic Fields
Kharagpur)
Anamika Dubey Isolation and Botany Selvadurai Daya
(Institution: Dr. Characterization of a Novel Dayanandan
13 Harisingh Gour Pathogenesis-Related Concordia university
Central University | Protein Gene in soybean Ravindra N Chibbar
Sagar) under pathogen stress University of
conditions Saskatchewan
Cinu Varghese Evaluation and Rural Roopesh Mohandas
(Institution: Characterization of Development | Syamaladevi
14 Indian Institute of | Developed High-Energy, University of Alberta
Technology Nutrient-Dense Food Bar
Kharagpur) for Undernourished
Adolescents
Ankita Shroff An Experimental Study on Home Science | Patricia Dolez
(Institution: Developing an Anti- University of Alberta
15 Maharaja Microbial and Insect
Sayajirao Repellent Textile Fabric for
University of Preservation of Textiles
Baroda)
Sanil Kumar Planning for Integrated Urban Patricia E. Perkins
(Institution: Development in Kuttanad Planning & York University
16 | Indian Institute of | Wetland Region of Kerala Design
Technology, State, India
Roorkee)
Athira M Inspecting Gastronomical English Ann Martin
(Institution: Narratives- The Role of University of
Pondicherry Food in Children's Saskatchewan
17 ) . .
University) Literature Wendy Roy
University of
Saskatchewan
Rhea Mammen Towards Socially relevant Law P.M Vasudev
18 National Law legal Education: through University of Ottawa

School of India
University

curriculum mapping

Sara Slinn York
University
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Annexure 4

SHASTRI RESEARCH STUDENT FELLOWSHIP (SRSF): POST DOCTORAL

Name of the Proposed
S.No. Applicant and Topic of Project Discipline institution/university
Institutio for affiliation
Archana Koul Regulation of Carotenoid | Biotechnology | Gopinadhan Paliyath
University of Biosynthesis and University of Guelph
1 Jammu Accumulation During
Color Development in
Tomato
Karabi Pathak Assessing Grass Species Environmental | Marney lsaac
2 Assam University for Phytolith Occluded Studies and University of Toronto
Carbon Sequestration Forestry
Nitin Sharma Improvement in Failure Metallurgical | Jerzy A. Szpunar
Indian Institute of Resistance of Linepipe & Materials University of
3 Technology Kanpur | Steels by Optimizing Engineering Saskatchewan
Texture and Grain
Boundary Character
Distribution (GBCD)
Vishal Mutreja Development of Chemistry Jeongwon Park
Panjab University Fluorescent Carbon University of Ottawa
4 Nanostructures for the
Detection of Reactive
Nitrogen Species (RNS).
Biplab Brahma Soil Nutrient Environmental | Andrew
Senior Research Management and Carbon | Science and Hammermeister
s Scholar Sequestration: A step Climate Dalhousie University
(Institution: Assam | Towards Sustainable Soil Change Pierre-Luc Chagnon
University) Management in Climate Professeur Université
Change Scenario de Montréal
Mayur Sawant Investigations on additive | Mechanical Ahmed Qureshi
Post-Doctoral manufacturing of NiTi Engineering University of Alberta
6 Fellow (Institution: | biomedical components
Indian Institute of by plasma transferred arc
Technology Indore) | deposition process
Monika Patel Sustainable Strategies for | Chemistry Helene Lebel
Postdoctoral C-H and C-N Bond Univesite de
Research Associate | Functionalization in Drug Montreal
7 (Institution: Discovery Using Marco A. Ciufolini
University of Delhi) | Photochemical University of British
Continuous Flow Columbia
Technology
Supriya Katti Understanding the Social Shantanu Dutta
8 Postdoctoral Fellow | Influence of Business Sciences University of Ottawa

(Institution: Indian

Group Affiliation on
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Institute of

Corporate Social

Technology Responsibility: Evidence

Kanpur) from India and Canada

Asim Rizvi Characterization of pro- Biomedical Girish Shah
Aligarh Muslim cancerous roles of poly Sciences Laval University
University (ADP- ribose) polymerase-

1 in solar ultraviolet
radiation-induced skin
cancer
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Annexure 5

SHASTRI RESEARCH STUDENT FELLOWSHIP (SRSF): STUDENT

S Name of the Proposed
N‘; Applicant and Topic of Project Discipline | Institution/University
’ Institution for Affiliation
Ravichandra Patil Biochemical Methane Biotechnology Dr. Cigdem Eskicioglu
(Institution: Indian Potential Professor School of
Institute of Assays for Biochar Engineering
1 Technology Selection for Okanagan Campus,
Guwahati) Bioaugmentation In UBC
Anaerobic
Digestion
Anuhya Nalluri Construction & Health Sciences | Lyndon Jones
(Institution: Validation of Three- University of
2 | University of Dimensional Profile of Waterloo
Hyderabad) Tear Lipid Layer: A
Quantitative Approach
Anurag Agarwal Numerical Modelling in Mechanical Mohammed Jalal
(Institution: Indian Microfluidics Engineering Ahamed
3 Institute of University of Windsor
Technology Jean-Pierre Hickey
Kharagpur) University of
Waterloo
*Qjasvi Verma IIT Use of Plant Proteins in Chemistry Chibuike C. Udenigwe
Gandhinagar Designing University of Ottawa
Nanostructures for The
Delivery of Bioactive
Compounds and In
4 Studying the Behaviour
Of the Protein
Nanoparticles in
Simulated
Physiological
Environments
Pardeep Kumar Modelling Complex Fluids | Mechanical Carlos Frederico
(Institution: Indian in Enhanced Oil Recovery | Engineering University of Alberta
5 | Institute of
Technology,
Roorkee)
Hrishikesh Danawe | Design and Dynamics of Mechanical Anasavarapu
(Institution: Indian Stick-Applicator Engineering Srikantha Phani
6 | Institute of Assembly in Railway University of British
Technology Applications Columbia
Kharagpur)
Arun Dayanandan Characterizing Invasive Biology Mohammed Latif
7 (Institution: Behavioural Syndromes Khan
Concordia Between Colour Hari Singh Gour
University) Morphotypes In an Central University
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Endemic Invasive Snail in
Cardamom Plantations
for Conservation
Management in The
Western Ghats
Biodiversity Hotspot

Raunak Swarnkar Combining Volumetric Computer Tanya Schmah
(Institution: Indian and Surface-Based Science & University of Ottawa
8 | Institute of Methods for Neuroimage | Engineering
Technology Registration
Gandhinagar)
Aritra Das Secure Quantum Physics Barry Sanders
9 (Institution: Indian Computing on The Cloud University of Calgary
Institute of
Technology Kanpur)
*Tiasa Basuroy Christianisation In Orissa: | History Neilesh Bose
10 University of Canadian Baptists And University of Victoria
Calcutta Savaras Experience,
1860-1960
Rohit Dabholkar Management of Aquatic | Civil Engineering | Brandon H. Gilroyed
(Institution: Indian Weeds Using University of Guelph

11 | Institute of

Vermicoposting Methods

J. Patrick A.

Technology University of Calgary
Guwahati)
Samruddhi Damle Exogenous and Neuroscience Britt Anderson
(Institution: Indian Endogenous Attentional University of

12 | Institute of Cueing of Emotional Waterloo
Technology Valence: Modulation by
Gandhinagar) Probability
Julie VanBerkel Understanding the Gender Studies | Bharathi

(Institution: Policies and Procedures University of Madras
13 University of Regarding Sexual Lilian | Jasper
Guelph) Violence at Higher Women's Christian
Education Institutions in College
India
Manvinder Gill Perceptions of Alcohol in | Religion and Radhika Chopra
14 (Institution: Colonial India, Religious Delhi University
McMaster Masculinity, and Sikhism | Studies
University)
Elijah Dalton Understanding Monetary | Social Sciences Aditya Raj
15 (Institution: Aid in Post-Disaster IIT Patna
University of Children's Outcomes
Guelph)

Rajat Maheshwari Performance and Corporate Shantanu Dutta
(Institution: Indian Information Content of Finance and University of Ottawa
16 | Institute of Merger and Acquisition Probability of
Technology (M&A) Deals Informed
Kharagpur) Trading
*Waitlist
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Annexure 6

SHASTRI STUDENT INTERNSHIP PROJECT (SSIP)

Applicant’s

S.No. Name & :,:{j Project Title Subject Area Host Inst.
Institution
Ms. Kamakshi | Grad | Graduate Research Trainee Experimental McGill
1 Khosla Medicine University
University of
Delhi
Mr. Anurag Grad Managing the Print McMaster
) University of misinformation — menace of | Journalism University
Hyderabad fake news in urban —rural
class.
Ms. Anmol Grad Engage research at the Humanities Western
Dutta intersection of gender, post University
3 University of colonialism and film
Mumbai
Mr. Indu Kant | UG Greener Living Spaces Aerospace University of
Deo IIT KGP Through Data-Driven Engineering British
4 Predictive Models of Columbia
Turbulent Flows in Passive
Buildings
Ms. Sai- Grad Cumulative risk, cumulative | Health Ryerson
Shubhangi outcome and mediated nets | Psychology University
5 Vajja of adversity or more
University of colloquially, 'Kids in Context'
Hyderabad
Mr. Arashjit uG Lower order modelling of Computational | University of
6 Singh shock interaction with small | Fluid Waterloo
IIT KGP amplitude turbulence Dynamics
fluctuations
Ms. Arish UG Synthesis of Graphene Material University of
Naim Nanomaterials and Science and British
7 Aligarh Development of their Nano Science | Columbia
Muslim multifunctional Polymer
University Nanocomposits




SHASTRI PROGRAMME DEVELOPMENT GRANT (SPDG)

Annexure 7

Name of Applicant & . Duration of Amount
S.No. . . Proposed Topic L. :
Designation activity (in INR)
Paul Bramadat Religion and its Others: 4 days 3,00,000
1 Professor and Director | Power, Sovereignty, and
University of Victoria Secularism in India Past and
Present
Mathieu Boisvert Gender Issues: Perspectives 31 days 3,00,000
5 Director, CERIAS from India and Canada
Université du Québec
a Montréal
Prabhjot Parmar Ready and True: India and the | 1 days 3,00,000
Associate Professor of | Great War
3 English
University of Fraser
Valley
Satwinder Bains Higher Education and Foreign | 323 days 300,000
4 Associate Professor Universities in India: A Case
University of Fraser Study.
Valley
Smita Bhutani Four-Day International 3 days 300,000
Professor Panjab Workshop on Health Care for
5 University Older Population: Learning
from Indo-Canadian
Experiences
Parneet Kaur Dhillon How Do We Know and 6 days 300,000
6 Assistant Professor Experience the Past?
Punjabi University Heritage, Memory, And the
Punjabi Landscape
Chiradeep Basak International Conference on 1 days 200,000
Assistant Professor Climate Change: Exploring
7 National Law the Multidisciplinary

University and Judicial
Academy, Assam

Contours 2019
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Annexure 8
SHASTRI PUBLICATION GRANT (SPG)

Proposed
. Name of . . ... Type of
S. No. | Institution licant Title of Subject/Discipline Publication Amount
Applican Publication (in INR)
Université | Mathieu Les hijras: Anthropology Book 1,00,000
du Boisvert Portrait
Québec a | Professor, | Socioreligieux
Montréal | Director D’une
1 CERIAS Communauté
Transgenre
Indienne
Kristin Plys | Assistant Brewing Sociology Book 1,00,000
University Professor Resistance:
of Toronto Indian Coffee
2 House and The
Emergency in
Postcolonial
India
Wilson Associate For God or History Monograph | 1,00,000
Jacob Professor Empire: Sayyid
3 Concordia Fadl and the
University Indian Ocean
World
Lopamudra | Associate Human Rights Political Science Monograph | 1,00,000
Sengupta Professor of | of the Third
4 University Political Gender in
of Calcutta | Science India: Beyond
the Binary
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Annexure 9
SHASTRI MEMBERSHIP DEVELOPMENT GRANT (SMDG)

Namc'e of the e T Amount Suppo.rt from
S.No. App-llcan.t & R Vi Event Date Requested App!lcaf\t’s
Designation from SICI Institution
Shweta Gupta Emerging Trends
Assistant and Career
1 Professor Opportunities in 28-09-2018 15,000 10,000
University of Pharmaceutical Field
Mumbai Across the Globe
Amit Dua Workshop on 01-03-2019 30 15000
5 Assistant Blockchain
professor Technology for
BITS Pilani Smart Grid System
Shilpa The Power of
Hattiangadi You”- Explore A
Assistant Spectrum of 2013-02-16 60 15,000
3 Professor Possibilities in The
SNDT Media World- One
Women's Day Symposium
University
Debashree Transitions in
Dattaray Policy, Resilience
A Assistant and Identity: New 2019-02-06 30 15,000
Professor Challenges in Indo-
Jadavpur Canadian Studies
University
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Annexure 10

SHASTRI SCHOLAR TRAVEL SUBSIDY GRANT (SSTSG)

Applicant and Partner Institution Presentation
S.No. . . . . Venue of the event
Institution Contact Person topic/Training
Shailly Kedia Nilgun Onder Presentation on Sheraton Toronto in
Jawaharlal Nehru ISA-Canada and International Studies Toronto, Ontario,
1 University Canadian inviter involving United Nations Canada
from University of and Sustainable
Regina Development
Leena Sachdeva Danielle Van From Rhetoric to Reality: Sauder School of
Indian Institute of | Jaarsveld Factors Influencing Career | Business the University
Management The University of Entry and Career of British Columbia
) Kashipur British Columbia Progression of Women in
Non-Traditional
Occupations (A Case Study
of World's Eight Biggest
Employer)
Amar Wayal Dr. Hendrika H The Red Narrative: Department of
Central University | Beaulieu Margins and Indigenous Studies,
3 of Gujarat Department of Representation in University of Lethbridge
Indigenous Studies, Selected Post 1990s North
University of American Native Fiction
Lethbridge
Jai Chaubey Manju Mohan Fog, Visibility and Cloud Centre for Atmospheric
4 Dalhousie Indian Institute of Condensation Sciences, |IT Delhi.
University Technology, Delhi Nuclei over High Arctic
Regions
Arun Kumar Chris De Groot Remediation of Cr (VI) and | Ryerson University, 350
Indian Institute of Ryerson University DDVP co-contaminated Victoria Street, Toronto
5 Technology Kanpur wastewater using Canada
sequential adsorption and
CWAO over Cu-Fe-carbon
nano-fiberous beads
Inderjeet Mann Dr. William Cope Political Participation of Robson Square,
Singh UBC Ethnic Minorities University of British
6 Jawaharlal Nehru In Canada: A Study of Columbia (UBC),
University Sikhs And Muslims In Vancouver, Canada
Canada
Rahul Singhal Ingo Salzmann Non-fullerene acceptor Department of Physics
Malaviya National | Concordia University | based organic solar cells and Department of
7 Institute of for augmenting efficiency | Chemistry &
Technology Jaipur Biochemistry, Concordia
University
Poulose Poulose Prof. Mariana Frank | Exploring Beyond the Department of Physics,
Indian Institute of | Concordia University | Standard Model Physics: Concordia University
8 .
Technology Multi-Scalar and Dark
Guwahati matter Studies
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Annexure 11

Shastri Membership Development Fund (SMDF)

S.No. | Name of CMC Name of Recipient Purpose/Project/Date
Institution
St. Thomas Prof. Michael Dawson | Information session- Shastri Institute
1 University Associate Vice (Date: Nov 23, 2018)
President (Research)
University of Prof. Doris Jakobsh India-Canada and SICI: a Canada-India
2 Waterloo bridge for yesterday-today and
tomorrow.
(Date: June 25, 2018)
Cape Breton Zuzana Istvankova Info session on SICI Funding
3 University Office of Research and | opportunities
Grad Studies (Dates: Oct 12, 2018 and Mar 15,
2019)
McMaster University | Prof. Rama Singh Visit of Indian High Commissioner, HE
4 Vikas Swarup
(Date: Oct 22, 2018)
University of Laval Prof. Girish M Shah Info session on the grant programs
5 CHUL (CHU-Q) offered by SICI
Hospital Res Ctr. (Date: Oct 30, 2018)
University of Victoria | Prof. Neilesh Bose SICI Global South Asian Forum 2018-
6

Dept. of History

19 Seminar and Reception
(Date: Sept 27, 2018)
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUE
(India Office)

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2019
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w(" Khanna Gulati & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members

Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute.
New Delhi

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the India Office of Shastri
Indo-Canadian Institute, New Delhi (Incorporated in Canada without Share
Capital), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Income and
Expenditure Account for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of Institute is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the
institute in accordance with the Accounting Standards as issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. This responsibility includes the design. implementation
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

1

T 40111 --,ﬂ.1"'471'2'1-;,;J<;3_,'"";‘,”“' Dutt Chambers-II, 9 Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delfi*410066
26104222, 26170244, 26184288, F : +91-11-26101773, M : +91-9810011943, E: rohit@kgaca.net
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considers internal control relevant to the Institute’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the India office as at March
31,2019;

b) in the case of the Income and Expenditure Account, of the excess of Income over
expenditure of the India office for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the following matter of emphasis:

Refer Note No. 2(d) of Notes to Accounts of the financial statements regarding the
allocation of funds amounting to Rs.2,68,20,221/-for various awards/contracts which has
been awarded /entered by the Institute during the year and to be executed in next
financial year. In this regard, we have been informed by the Institute that the grant were
received for the financial year 2018-19 and that the same were awarded in last week of
March 2019 and hence all these were not expensed in FY 2018-2019. In view of above,
these funds not having been expensed are reflected as “Committed Expenditure Funds™
in the Balance Sheet for year ended 31° March 2019.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
We report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

4
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b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
India office so far as appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet and Income and Expenditure Account dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet and Income and Expenditure Account comply
with the Accounting Standards as specified by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

e) Institute does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
positions

f) Institute did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

For Khanna Gulati and Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Regn. No. 012190N

O

(Rohit Khanna)

o/ Partner

Membership No. 084878
Place: New Delhi
Date: 23/05/2019




SHASTRI INDO CANADIAN INSTITUTE
India office, New Delhi
(Incorporated in Canada without share capital)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019

Sch No.| As at 31/03/2019 | As at 31/03/2018
Particulars Rs. Rs.
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Corpus
Capital Grant 1(a) 6,311,615 5,765,214
Membership Fee Account 1(b) 10,299,696 6,027,380
Reserves
General Reserve Funds 2 1,985,205 4,494 151
Retirement Benefit Reserve Funds 3 6,195,986 4,185,549
Total 24,792,503 20,472,293
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets 4
Gross Block 4 051,692 3,531,014
Less : Depreciation 2,380,597 2,082,291
Net Block 1,671,095 1,448,723
Current Assets, Loans & Advances
Cash and Bank balances 5 46,027,579 44 811,842
Loans and Advances 6 7,715,163 10,427,820
A 53,742,742 55,239,662
Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions 7
Current Liabilities 30,621,335 36,216,092
B 30,621,335 36,216,092
Net Current Assets (A-B) 23,121,407 19,023,570
Total 24,792,503 20,472,293
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

For the Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute
(India Office)

(Prachi Kaul )
Director

Place: New Delhi
Dated: Qg/r-:-,s/_zo /9
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Chartered Accountants

_(!CAI Regn. No. 012190N)

= __."--_(Rohit Khanna)

Partner
Membership No. 084878




SHASTRI INDO CANADIAN INSTITUTE
India office, New Delhi
(Incorporated in Canada without share capital)

Income and Expenditure Account for the year ended on 31st March 2019

Sch No. For the year For the year
Particulars ended on ended on
31/03/2019 31/03/2018
REVENUES:
Operating Revenue A 14,453 598 13,982,896
Programmes :
Library Programme B 288,405 497 146
Seminars & Conferences C 4,070,168 2,832 564
Restructuring & Governance Initiatives D 2,236,566 2,651,411
Collaborative Research Projects E 6,460,949 8,061,002
Shastri Mobility programme F 3,749,650 4,845,365
Shastri Student Research Fellowship Programme G 25,219,051 26,464 813
Faculty-in-Residence/ GIAN/ SPARC Programme H 33,044 6,749
Golden Jubilee Year Celebration Programme | 75,034 2,500
Total Revenue 56,586,465 59,344,446
EXPENDITURE :
Operating Expenses A 14,289,507 13,084,093
Programmes :
Library Programme B 288,405 497 146
Facilitation cum Information Centre Cc 4,070,168 2,832,564
Restructuring & Governance Initiatives D 2,236,566 2,651,411
Collaborative Research Projects E 6,460,949 8,061,002
Shastri Mobility programme F 3,749,650 4 845 365
Shastri Student Research Fellowship Programme G 25,219,051 26,464,813
Faculty-in-Residence/ GIAN/ SPARC Programme H 33,044 6,749
Golden Jubilee Year Celebration Programme | 75,034 2,500
Total Expenditure 56,422,374 58,445,643
Excess of Revenue over Expenditure 164,091 898,803
Add: Non Operating Revenue J 413,567 (176,891)
Less: Depreciation (318,331) (302,101)
Excess of Revenue over Expenditure 259,326 419,810
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

For the Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute
(India Office)

Hond

o

(Prachi Kaul )
Director

Place: New Delhi
Dated:; ,’;23/0{/10/-?
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Chartered Accountants

(ICAl Regn. No. 012190N)

(U

(Rohit Khanna)

Partner

Membership No. 084878




SHASTRI INDO CANADIAN INSTITUTE
India office, New Delhi
(Incorporated in Canada without share capital)

Schedules to Balance Sheet.

Particulars Sch | Asat 31/03/2019 | As at 31/03/2018
No. Rs. Rs.
CAPITAL GRANT 1(a)
Opening Balance 5,765,213 4,255,549
Add: Transferred from Operating Grants towards
Purchase of Fixed Assets 546,402 1,509,665
6,311,615 5,765,214
Less ; Transferred to Operating Revenue : -
6,311,615 5,765,214
MEMBERSHIP FEE ACCOUNTS 1(b)
Opening Balance 6,027,380 4,842,386
Additions during the year 4272316 1,184,994
Closing balance 10,299,696 6,027,380
GENERAL RESERVES 2
Opening Balance 4,494 151 4,074,340
Add: Surplus / (Deficit) 259,326 419,810
Less: Interest on Funds for P/Y returned to GOI (2,768,272) -
1,985,205 4,494,151
RETIREMENT BENEFITS FUND 3
Gratuity Reserve Fund 3,744,443 2,297,991
Leave Encashment Reserve Fund 2,451,543 1,887,558
6,195,986 4,185,549
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Schedules to Balance Sheet.

Particulars Sch | Asat 31/03/2019 | As at 31/03/2018
No. Rs. Rs.
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 5
Cash in hand (as certified by Management) 23,690 30,938
Balance with Scheduled Bank in
i. Savings Accounts 6,495,625 (2,343,407)
ii. Deposits with bank 39,500,000 47,124,243
iii. Saving Account - Retirement Benefits 8,264 68
46,027,579 44,811,842
LOANS & ADVANCES 6
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value 1,919,177 6,242 271
to be received ( to the extent recoverable)
Retirement Benefit Funds with LIC of India 6,195,986 4,185,549
7,715,163 10,427,820
CURRENT LIABILITIES 7
I Sundry Creditors for expenses 2,437,974 2,775,848
Other Current Liabilities - 1,082,636
2,437,974 3,858,484
Il Membership Fee for Canadian Studies Library 95,983 95,233
95,983 95,233
lll. Restricted Funds :-
Fellowship Programme 1,817 1,817
Library Programme (Government of India) 178,451 216,856
Restructuring & Governance Initiatives 924 291 660,857
Kanta Marwah Lecture Series 79,147 79,147
Faculty -in-Residence/ GIAN Programme 83,452 116,496
Facilitation cum Information Center - 1,591,356
Collaborative Research Projects Programme - 560,005
1,267,157 3,226,532
IV. Committed Expenditure Funds:
Shastri Mobility Programme 2,486,758 2,826,210
Facilitation cum Information Center 3,088,651 787,963
Shastri Student Research Fellowship Programme 14,553,970 17,921,671
Collaborative Research Projects Programme 6,690,843 7,500,000
26,820,221 29,035,844
30,621,335 36,216,092




SHASTRI INDO CANADIAN INSTITUTE
India office, New Delhi
(Incorporated in Canada without share capital)

Schedules to Income and Expenditure Accounts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch | For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2019 31/03/2018
Operating Revenue and Expenditure A
REVENUE
Government of India Grant for Operations 15,000,000 15,492 560
Less: Grant Utilised towards Capital Expenditure 546,402 1,509,665
14,453,598 13,982,896
EXPENDITURES
Staff Cost
Salaries and Benefits 7,707,290 7,035,818
Contribution to Provident Fund 856,284 705,182
Contribution to Retirements Benefits 1,708,093 12,283
Staff Training & Recruitment 13,458 77,526
Staff Welfare 164,368 149,025
10,449,493 7,979,834
Administrative and Other Expenses
Communication Expense 93,189 131,251
Electricity and Water Charges 251,370 226,786
Insurance - Building 26,006 25,652
Legal and Professional Charges 174,862 143,173
Loss on sale/disposal of Fixed Assets 5,200 204,823
Membership Fee & Subscriptions 17,700 17,250
Miscellaneous Expenses 68,106 45,334
President/ Vice President - Travel and other expenses 234,067 159,081
Printing and Publicity Expense 134,048 155,033
Public relations 35,419 69,220
Rates & Taxes 319,942 396,864
Repairs & Maintenance - Building 570,609 1,748,407
Repairs & Maintenance -Others 149,615 265,647
Watch & Ward Expenses 565,364 465,888
Travel and Meetings 734,440 592,672
Car Rental Expenses 460,078 457,178
3,840,014 5,104,259
Total Operating Expenses 14,289,507 13,084,093
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Schedules to Income and Expenditure Accounts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch | Forthe year | For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2019 31/03/2018
Schedule of Library Programme B
REVENUE
Government of India Grant 250,000 505,000
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund 216,856 209,001
466,856 714,001
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund 178,451 216,856
288,405 497,146
EXPENDITURES
Library expenses on Digital resources - 183,980
Shipping Cost 40,327
Packing Material - 157
Subscription for Indian Member Institutions 288,405 272,682
288,405 497,146
Schedule of Facilitation cum Information Centre Cc
REVENUE
Government of India Grant 4,779,500 4,345,000
Add: Transferred from Committed Expenditure funds 787 963 -
Add: Transferred from other Restricted Funds 1,591,356 866,883
7,158,819 5,211,883
Less : Transferred to Committed Expenditure Funds 3,088,651 787,963
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund - 1,591,356
4,070,168 2,832,564
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Schedules to Income and Expenditure Accounts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch | For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2019 31/03/2018
EXPENDITURES
Facilitation Activities
Shastri Membership Development Grant
Prof S Chattopadhyay, Jadavpur University 15,000
Prof.S. Armstrong, University of Madras - 15,000
University of Mumbai 15,000 —
Information / Communication Centre
Development of Web portal 161,070 283,200
Administrative Expenses 473 596 266,532
Shastri Programme Development Grant
Pondicherry University-Dr.Kalpana H. 200,000 -
Hyderabad University - Dr. VVaralakshmi 315,319 -
University of Victoria - Dr Bramadatt Paul 255,000
UQAM-Prof Mathieu Boisvert 255,000 -
University of Fraser valley - Prabhjot Parmar 255,000 -
Punjabi University-Prof.Smita Bhutani 255,000 -
NLUJA. Assam- Prof.Chiradeep Basak 170,000 -
Shastri Publication Grant
University of Victoria - Prof. Seegla Brecher 117,000
UQAM-Prof Mathieu Boisvert 85,000
University of British Columbia - Sebastian Prange 99,450 -
Seminars, Workshops, Consultations,Meetings
150th Birth Anniversary Celebration of Mahatma Gandhi event at 168,831
Ottawa
Swachchata Hi Seva event at the Office 2,712 -
Parliament Hill Event Canada - 187,589
Event in Collaboration with Confederation of Indian Industries (Cll) - 401,205
Conference at Jadavpur University - 10,000
Roundtable on November 13 2017 99,762
Bilateral Workshop on Climate Change 62,785
Stakeholders Meeting on 22 Feb 2018 - 6,665
Conference on Engaging Canada and India : Challenges of 1,242 190 829,042
Sustainable Development Goals
Conference on Engaging Canada and India : Perspectives on - 655,785
Sustainability
4,070,168 2,832,564
Schedule of Restructuring & Governance Initiatives D
REVENUE
Government of India Grant el & 2,500,000 2,970,000
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund ' 4' 660,857 342,268
) 3,160,857 3,312,268
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund | 924 291 660,857
2,236,566 2,651,411
EXPENDITURES
Expenses incurred on Indian Member Council Meeting 1,685,317 1,734,997
Expenses incurred on Restructuring & Governance Initiatives 551,250 916,414
2,236,566 2,651,411
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Schedules to Income and Expenditure Accounts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch | For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2019 31/03/2018
Schedule of Shastri Institutional Collaborative Research Projects | E
Programme_
REVENUE
Government of India Grant 5,088,500 5,410,000
Add: Transfer from Committed Expenditure Fund 7,500,000 7,000,000
Add: Unspent balance received from AlIMS 3,287 3,711,000
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund 560,005 7
13,151,792 16,121,007
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund B 560,005
Less : Transferred to Committed Expenditure Funds 6,690,843 7,500,000
6,460,949 8,061,002
EXPENDITURES
Grants disbursed to Collaborative Research Projects
University of Victoria- Aditi Gupta 500,000 -
IIM Kashipur- Prof Baharul Islam 500,000 -
Indian Institute of Kharagpur -Amit Kumar Das - 255,000
UBC - Michelle Stack - 45,000
[IT Bombay - Siby K. George 425,000 500,000
IIT Bombay - Dr. Zakir Rather - 500,000
Carleton University - Dr.Abass Braimah 425,000 500,000
University of Ottawa - Darrin Richeson 425,000 500,000
IIT Delhi- Dr. Vasant Matsagar 425,000 500,000
IIT Roorkee- Dr. Yogesh Kr. Sharma - 500,000
University of Quebec, Montreal- Dr. Simon Collins 425,000 500,292
University of Saskatchewan - Ajay Dalai 425,000 500,000
IIT Gandhinagar - Dr.Arnab Datta - 500,000
IIT Delhi - Dr.Dhanya CT - 500,000
University of calgary - Dr.Shahirose - 500,000
University of Waterloo - Dr.Shelley Hullan - 500,000
University of Waterloo - Dr.Joydeep Mukherjee 419,892 500,000
JNU- Dr.Subhasis Ghosh 425,000 500,000
IIT Tirupati- P.C. Deshmukh - 500,000
NLSIU Bangalore -Sarasu Esther Thomas - 255,000
Expenses of Adjudication Committee 34,077 5,710
[IT Bombay-Prof.S.Balasubramanian 500,000 -
Jamia Millia Islamia - M.Ashraf 500,000
IIT Roorkee- Prof.Harsh Chauhan 500,000 -
[IT Roorkee - Arindam Biswas 500,000
Administrative Expenses 31,980 .
6460949.38 8061002
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Schedules to Income and Expenditure Accounts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch | Forthe year | For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2019 31/03/2018
Schedule of Shastri_Mobility Programme I
REVENUE
Government of India Grant 3,410,198 4,009,271
Add: Transfer from Committed Expenditure Fund 2,826,210 3,655,932
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund - 6,372
6,236,408 7,671,575
Less : Transferred to Committed Expenditure Funds 2,486,758 2,826,210
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund - -
3,749,650 4,845,365
EXPENDITURES
Expenses for Adjudication Committee 6,707 455
Expenses for Mobility Programme Awardees for 2018-19 1,206,522 -
Expenses for Mobility Programme Awardees for 2017-18 2,504 139 1,185,950
Expenses for 16 Mobility Programme Awardees for 2016-17 - 3,658,960
Administrative Expenses 32,282 -
3,749,650 4,845,365
Schedule of Shastri Student Research Fellowship Programme G
(Three Cateqories)
REVENUE
Government of India Grant 21,851,350 23,827,524
Add: Transfer from Committed Expenditure Fund 17,921,671 21,508,406
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund 5 50,555
39,773,021 45,386,485
Less : Transferred to Committed Expenditure Funds 14,553,970 17,921,671
Less: Transferred to Collaborative Research Projects - 1,000,000
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund - -
25,219,051 26,464,813
EXPENDITURES
Expenses for Adjudication Committee 35,407 50,960
Dissemination & Orientation Programme 1,885,820 1,823,358
Expenses for 1 SRSF awardees of 2016-17 87,571 19,273,872
Expenses for 35 SRSF awardees of 2017-18 17,222,598 4 878,795
Expenses for SRSF awardees of 2018-19 5,602,991 -
Administrative Expenses 384,664 437,829
25,219,051 26,464,813
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Schedules to Income and Expenditure Accounts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch | For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2019 31/03/2018
Schedule of Faculty-in-Residence/ GIAN Programme ( New ) H
REVENUE
Government of India Grant - 1,650,000
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund 116,496 73,245
116,496 1,723,245
Less: Transferred to Collaborative Research Projects - 1,600,000
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund 83,452 116,496
33,044 6,749
EXPENDITURES
Outreach with SPARC Recipients at Ottawa 33,044 -
Administrative Expenses - 6,749
33,044 6,749
Schedule of Golden Jubilee Year Celebration Programme |
New
REVENUE
Government of India Grant 75,034 2,500
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund - 5
75,034 2,500
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund - -
75,034 2,500
EXPENDITURES
Golden Jubilee Celebrations Inaugural ceremony 12,731 -
Logo Design Competition 62,303 2,500
75,034 2,500
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Schedules to Income and Expenditure Accounts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch | Forthe year | Forthe year
ended on ended on
31/03/2019 31/03/2018

Non Operating Revenue J

Interest Income 374,469 3,048,878

Less: Interest payment made to GOI - (3,231,442)

Interest Income (Net) 374 469 (182,564)

Liabilities written back 35,304

Miscellaneous Receipts 3,794 5673

413,567 (176,891)
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Shastri Indo Canadian Institute
India Office, New Delhi
(Incorporated in Canada without Share Capital)

Schedules forming part of Financial Statements as on 31 March 2019

Schedule “8"

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. GRANTS

Funds received for general operations are classified as operating revenue and Funds
received towards programmes are classified as follows:

To the extent of —
Funds related to expenditure for which the institute has entered into a contract but
the activities and payments relating to same will happen in next financial year are
classified as committed expenditure funds and disclosed as current liabilities.

- Programme expenditure, an equivalent amount is classified as programme revenue:
Purchase of fixed assets, an equivalent amount is classified as Capital Grants.

- Unutilized funds at the year-end are transferred to restricted funds and disclosed as
current liabilities.

b. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

All expenses have been accounted for on the accrual basis.

c. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets have been capitalized at cost of acquisition along with any related
expenditure,

d. DEPRECIATION

Depreciation on assets costing in excess of Rs. 5000 is provided on the written
down value method according to rates as specified here below:

Furniture & Fixtures 18.10%
Office Equipment 13.91% %
Vehicle 25.89%
Computers 40.00%

Assets costing upto Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of their purchase.
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Depreciation on assets purchased from programme funds has been charged to the
Operating Expenditure and an equivalent amount has been transferred from Capital
Grants accumulated to Operating Revenues.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(i) Provident Fund

The Institute makes monthly provident fund contributions to an independent trust,
which is charged to revenue. The Institute has opened a separate Provident Fund
Trust with effect from 1994-95 to take care of its provident fund liability towards its
employees. Till 31% March 2003, it contributes to Provident Fund and to the Provident
Fund only in respect of those employees whose salaries are charged to Operating
Exnenses and from 1 April 2003, it contributes to Provident Fund for all employees.

(ii) Gratuity

SICI provides for gratuity, a defined retirement plan [Gratuity Plans] covering all staff,
& officers. The Gratuity Plan provides for, at retirement or termination of employment,
an amount based on the respective employees last drawn salary & the years of
employment with the SICI. The SICI provides the gratuity benefit through annual
contributions to a Gratuity Trust which in turn mainly contributes to Life Insurance
Corporation of India [LIC] for this purpose.

Under this plan, the settlement obligation remains with the Gratuity Trust. LIC
administers the plan & determines the contribution premium required to be paid by
Trust.

(iii)  Leave encashment

SICI provides for leave encashment, a defined retirement plan [Leave Encashment
Plans] covering all staff, & officers. The leave encashment Plan provides for, at
retirement or termination of employment, an amount based on the respective
employees last drawn salary & the years of employment with the SICI. The SICI
provides the leave encashment benefit through annual contributions to a leave
encashment Trust which in turn mainly contributes to Life Insurance Corporation of
India [LIC] for this purpose.

Under this plan, the settlement obligation remains with the leave encashment Trust.
LIC administers the plan & determines the contribution premium required to be paid
by Trust,

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
Auditors’ Remuneration:

31/03/2019 31/03/2018
Audit Fees (excluding GST) Rs.1,09,148 Rs.1,03,950

Membership Fees — The annual fees received from members of Indian Members'
Council is deposited in a separate bank account. The Finance and Audit Committee
has decided on its meeting dated March 1, 2%‘:’ fo,classify the membership fees as
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part of corpus fund and interest generated on this will be treated as revenue income
which can be utilized for the program activities.

G An amount of Rs. 2,68,20,221/- are carried forward as committed expenditures funds
towards the amount due to awardees of various programmes adjudicated during the
year 2018-19.

d. Balances of Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable are subject to
confirmations.

e, Previous year's figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary to
confirm to current year's classification.

For the Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute For Khanna Gulati & Associates
(India Office) Chartered Accountants
(ICAl Regn. No. 012190N)

(Prachi IKaul) -/ {Rohit Khanna)
Director Partner

Membership No. 084878
/E YVLO@V(\ p

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 23 /05 /acr 4

79




SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUE
(Canada Office)

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2019
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CREMERS & ELLIOTT

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Direstors of Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute (Canada Office}

Opinion

Woe have audited the financial statements of Shastri Ingo-Canadian Institute (the Institute), which comprise
the statenent of financtat position as at March 31, 2019, and the statements of operations and changes to
unrestricted fund and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant aceounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Institute as at March 31, 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flow for the
year then ended in accordansce with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Institute in accordance with
the sthical requirements that are relevant te cur audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have
fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibiiities of Management and Those Charged with Governancs for the Financial Statsments

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such intemal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due lo fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Institute’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matiers relating to going congern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the institute or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Institute’s financial reporting process,

(continues)

Cremers & Elffott Chargered Accouniants is an operating name for Cremers & Co. Charsered Accountants LLP
213. 3907 34 Street NE, Calgary, AB, T2E 457 | Telaphone: 403-243-5355 | Fax: 403-243-5393 ’
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Directors of Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute {continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurancs about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducied in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material ff, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exsrcise professional Judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughaut the audit. We also:

«+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from efror, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Institute's internal control.

« Evaluale the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Contlude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going con¢emn basis of accounting
and, based on the audii evidence obtained, whether a material unceriainly exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Institute’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that 3 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the institute to cease to continue as
a going concern,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner.that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in inferal
controj that we identify during our audit.

fal
N "‘\‘7 \—
Caigary, Alberta Y
April 26, 2019 Cremers & Co. Chartered Accountants LLP
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE

(Canada Office)
Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2019

2018 _2018
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash $ 114995 § 22,830
Terrn deposits 197,414 146,313
Accounts receivable 6,049 202,349
Prepaid expenses . 2,061
Due from India QOffice {Note 2) 8447 =
324,905 373,553
EQUIPMENT (Note 3) 273 389
INVESTMENT IN SOUTH ASIA ADVISORY 1 1
$ 325179 $ 373,943
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 82432 § 58,719
Cue to India Office (Note 2) . 79,704
82432 2 138423
NET ASSETS
Endowments {Note 4) 43,513 43,298
Internally restricted (Nols 4) 30,309 30,309
Unrestrictad 168,925 181,915
242,747 235,520
$ 328179 § 373,943

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

M
7

Diractor

CREMERS & ELLIOTT

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS See notes to financial statements
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE
(Canada Office)

Statement of Operations and Changes to Unrestricted Fund

Year Ended March 31, 2019

2019 2018
REVENUE
Government grants
DFATD L - $ 200000
Other revenus
Membership fees 154,150 168,037
Other 20,901 3,250
Interest 885 1,295
Donations 600 2451
176,436 165,033
176,438 365,033
EXPENSES
Programme Expenses
Knowledge Partnership Frogrammes $ 39500 $ 181524
Promoting Understanding of India & Canada 19,989 15,291
Membership Development Fund 1,958 3,593
Total Programme Expenses 61,447 200,408
Operating Expenses
Salaries, banefits and personnel expenses 57,507 50,098
Office and equipment 18,522 21,124
Audit, legal, insurance and other 16,940 15,526
Public relations 8,001 11,748
Communications 3,350 4770
Govemance 2,686 32,667
Travel 873 41
Total Operating Expenses 107,979 136,274
169,426 336,682
EXCESS FOR THE YEAR 7,010 28,351
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 161,915 133,564
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 168925 8§ 161915

CREMERS & ELLIOTT
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

See notes to financial statements
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE
(Canada Office)
Statement of Cash Flow
Year Ended March 31, 2019

28 2018
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess for the year $ 7010 § 28,351
item not affecting cash:
Amertization of equipment 118 168
7126 28,817
Changes in non-cash working capital;
Accounts receivable 198,300 {200,784)
Prepaid expenses 2,061 {2,061)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 23,711 {25,832)
222072 {228.677)
Cash flow from {used by} operating activities 229198 {200,160}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Praceeds from term deposits - 48,104
Purhcase of term deposits {51,099) -
Investment in South Asia Advisory . (1
Cash flow from {used by} investing activities (51,099} 48,103
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances {to} from related parties {86,181} 94,386
Endowment interest 217 600
Cash flow from (used by} financing aclivities (85,934) 94 986
INCREASE (DECREASE]) IN CASH FLOW 92,165 {57,071}
Cash - beginning of year 22,830 79,901
CASH - END OF YEAR $ 1149885 3 22,830

CREMERS & ELLIOTT
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

See noles to financial statements

86




SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE
(Canada Office)
Notes to Financial Statoments
Year Ended March 31, 2019

1. PURPOSE OF THE INSTITUTE

The Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute (the Institute) is a not-for-profit organization incorporated under
the Laws of Canada. As a registered charity the Institute is exempt from the payment of income tax
under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act.

The Institute was founded in 1968 with a mission {o promote understanding between Canada and
India, mainly through academic programmes.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations (ASNPO).

These audited financial statements include the accounts and astivities of the Canada Office only. The
Institute’s India Office’s financial statements are prepared separately and audited by another
accounting firm in India. The management and members of the Institute have access to the financial
information for tioth Offices, and therefore the Institute has not prepared consolidated financial
statements.

Abbreviations

Abbreviations used throughout these financial statements are as follows:

CiDA Canadian iniernational Development Agency

DFAIT Department of Foreign Affairs and International Trade
iICCs International Council for Canadian Studies

DFATD Department of Foreign Affairs Trade and Development
BYID Bringing Youth Into Development

Equipment

Equipment is stated at cosi less accumulated amertization and is amortized over its estimated useful
life at the foliowing rates and methods:

Office and computer
equipment 30%  declining balance method
{confinyas)
CREMERS & ELLIOTT
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE
(Canada Office)

Notes to Financial Statements
Yoar Ended March 31, 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
The Institute follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.
Endowment conltributions are recagnized as direct increases in net assets.
The Institute racognizes earned revenue when alt the following conditions are met,

« services are provided or products are delivered o customers

¢ there is clear evidence that an arangement exists

+ amounts are fixed or can be determined

« tha ability 1o collect is reasonably assured

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when earned. investment income
generated from endowments is recognized as a direct increase {0 net assets when earned.

Contributed services

An agreement between The University of Calgary and the Institute provides for the University to
supply office space, janitorial services, heat, uliiities and some office services, The rent is established
gt a rate which is calculated to cover the operating costs of the space, and is below fair value. The
excess to fair value has not been recorded as a contribution; however, the actual cost is reported in
these financial statements. For the year ended March 31, 2018, the cost was $13,013 (2018 -
$15,034).

A significant portion of the institute’s work is dependent upon the contribution of volunteers. These
services are not normally purchased by the Institute and due to the difficulty in determining their fair
value, volunteer services are not recognized in these financial statements.

Financial instruments poficy

Financial instruments are reccorded at fair value when acquired or issued. [n subsequent periods,
financial assets with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with any unrealized gains and
losses reported In incoms. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost, and tested
for impairment at each reporting date. Transaction costs are recognized as an axpense in tha period
incurred for all financial instruments subseguently measured at fair vaiue. Financial instruments that
are subsequently maasured at amortized cost are adjusted by the transaction costs and financing
fees that are directly attributable to their organization, issuance or assumption.

{continues)

CREMERS & ELLIOTT
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE

{Canada Office)
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2019
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Net asset cateqories
Unrestricted net assets comprise the excess of revenue over expenses accumulated by the Institute
each year, net of transfers, and are available for general purposes.
Internally restricted net assets are funds which have been designated for specific purposes by the
Institute’s Executive Council, and cannct be spant without the Council's approval,
Endowments represent the institute's net investment in four endowment funds, and the annuafly
accruing interest related to these investments.
Measurement uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-
profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and fiabiliies, disciosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of reventes and expenses during the period.
Such sstimates are periodically reviewed and any adjustments necessary are reported in eamings in
the period in which they becoma known. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
3. EQUIPMENT
2019 2018
Cost Accumulated Net book Net book
amortization vakie _value
Office and computer
equipment $ 11007 $ 10824 § 273§ 383
4. ENDOWMENTS AND INTERNALLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
2019 2018
Endowments
Balance, beginning of year $ 43,206 42 696
Interest eamed 217 600
Contributions received - -
Balance, end of year 343513 § 43296
internally restricted net agsets
Balance, beginning of year L 30309 § 30,309
Interfund transfers = -
Balance, end of year $ 30309 $ 30208
CREMERS & ELLIOTT
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE
{Canada Office)

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2018

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Institute is exposed to various risks through its financlal instruments and has a comprehensive
risk management framework to monitor, evaiuate and manage these risks, The following analysis
provides information about the Institute's risk exposure and concentration as of March 31, 2018.

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities. The Institute is exposed to this risk mainly in respact of its receipt of funds from
its customers and contributors, and accounts pavable,

Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Institute is not exposed to other
significant risks arising from these financial insbuments.

8. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Some of the comparative figures have baen reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

CREMERS & ELLIOTT
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SHASTRI INDQ-CANADIAN INSTITUTE
{Canada Office)
Operations {Schedufe 1)
Year Ended March 31, 2019

_ 2019 2018
OTHER REVENUE
Membership fees $ 154150 § 158037
Other 20,901 3,250
Interest §85 1,295
Donaﬁons 500 2,451
176,436 166,033
EXPENSES
Programme Expenses
Shastri Student internship Program 31,500 -
Engaging India Conference 19,989 15,291
Scholar Travel Subsidy Grant 8,000 -
Membership Development Fund 1,958 3,593
Shastri Pearson Conference Travel Grant - 7,524
Administrative Expenses
Salaries, benefits and personnel expenses 57,507 24,098
Office and equipment 18,522 21,124
Audit, legal, insurance and other 16,940 15,826
Public relations 8,001 11,748
Communications 3,350 4,770
Goverparnce 2,686 32,667
Travel 973 41
169,428 136682
EXCESS FOR THE YEAR $ 7,010 $ 28,351
CREMERS & ELLIOTT

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS See notes to financial statements
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE

(Canada Office)
DFATD 2018-2019 (Schedule 2)
Year Ended March 31, 2018
_2019 2018
GOVERNMENT GRANTS
DFATD $ - $ 200,000
PROGRAMME EXPENSES
Shastri Research Grant . 91,000
Shastri Faculty Training & Intemationalisation Grant - 36,000
Shastii Pearson Conference Travel Grant - 34,000
Program administration costs (salaries & benefits) . 26,000
Scholar Travel Subsidy Grant - 13.000
. 200,000
EXCESS FOR THE YEAR $ - 3 =
DEFERRED REVENUE - DFATD FUNDS
Beginning balance $ = % =
Add: contributions received - 200,000
Add: unspent amount returned by recipients - -
Less: programme revenue . (174,000)
Lass: amount refunded back to DFATD - -
Less: administration and support revenue = {26,000}
Ending balance $ - 3 -
CREMERS & ELLIOTT
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS See noles to financial statements
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Our Members

Indian Member Institutions

=

S.No. Member Institutions

1 | Aligarh Muslim University

2 | Assam University

3 | Banaras Hindu University

4 | Berhampur University

5 | Bharathidasan University

6 | BITS Pilani

7 | Central University of Gujarat

8 | Central University of Kashmir

9 | Central University of Kerala

10 | CEPT University

11 | Delhi Technological University

12 | Dr. B. R. Ambedkar University Delhi

13 | Dr. Harisingh Gour University, Sagar

14 | Dr. M.G.R. Educational and Research Institute
15 | Dr. Ram Manohar Lohia National Law University
16 | Goa University

17 | Gujarat National Law University

18 | Gujarat University

19 | Guru Nanak Dev University

20 | Hidayatullah National Law University

21 | Himachal Pradesh University

22 | Indian Council of Philosophical Research

23 | Indian Institute for Social and Economic Change
24 | Indian Institute of Management Bangalore
25 | Indian Institute of Management Calcutta
26 | Indian Institute of Management Indore
27 | Indian Institute of Management Kashipur
28 | Indian Institute of Management Kozhikode
29 | Indian Institute of Management Lucknow
30 | Indian Institute of Management Nagpur
31 | Indian Institute of Management Udaipur
32 | Indian Institute of Technology Bhubaneswar
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33 | Indian Institute of Technology Bombay

34 | Indian Institute of Technology Delhi

35 | Indian Institute of Technology (Indian School of Mines) Dhanbad
36 | Indian Institute of Technology Dharwad

37 | Indian Institute of Technology Gandhinagar

38 | Indian Institute of Technology Guwahati

39 | Indian Institute of Technology Hyderabad

40 | Indian Institute of Technology Indore

41 | Indian Institute of Technology Jammu

42 | Indian Institute of Technology Kanpur

43 | Indian Institute of Technology Kharagpur

44 | Indian Institute of Technology Madras

45 | Indian Institute of Technology Mandi

46 | Indian Institute of Technology Patna

47 | Indian Institute of Technology Roorkee

48 | Indian Institute of Technology Ropar

49 | Indian Institute of Technology Tirupati

50 | Indira Gandhi National Open University

51 | Indira Kala Sangit Vishwavidyalaya

52 | Indraprastha Institute of Information Technology, Delhi
53 | Institute of Economic Growth

54 | Institute of Liver and Biliary Sciences

55 | International Institute of Information Technology, Bangalore
56 | International Management Institute New Delhi

57 | Jadavpur University

58 | Jamia Millia Islamia

59 | Jawaharlal Nehru University

60 | Lal Bahadur Shastri Institute of Management, Delhi

61 | Madurai Kamaraj University

62 | Maharshi Dayanand University

63 | Malaviya National Institute of Technology Jaipur

64 | Mangalore University

65 | MGM Institute of Health Sciences

66 | Narayana Medical College

67 | Narsee Monjee Institute of Management Studies

68 | National Academy of Legal Studies and Research University (NALSAR)
69 | National Institute of Design, Bangalore

70 | National Institute of Public Finance and Policy
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71 | National Institute of Science, Technology and Development Studies
72 | National Institute of Technology Tiruchirappalli

73 | National Law School of India University, Bangalore
74 | National Law University and Judicial Academy, Assam
75 | National Law University, Delhi

76 | National Law University, Jodhpur

77 | National Law University, Odisha

78 | National Museum Institute of History of Art, Conservation and Museology
79 | Nirma University

80 | Osmania University

81 | Pandit Deendayal Petroleum University

82 | Panjab University

83 | Pondicherry University

84 | Punjabi University

85 | Rajiv Gandhi National University of Law, Punjab

86 | Sant Longowal Institute of Engineering & Technology
87 | SASTRA Deemed University

88 | SNDT Women'’s University

89 | Sri Venkateswara University

90 | Tamil Nadu Agricultural University

91 | Tamil Nadu National Law School

92 | The English and Foreign Languages University

93 | The Institute of Mathematical Sciences

94 | The Maharaja Sayajirao University of Baroda

95 | The Tamil Nadu Dr. Ambedkar Law University

96 | The WB National University of Juridical Sciences

97 | University of Agricultural Sciences Bangalore

98 | University of Agricultural Sciences Dharwad

99 | University of Calcutta

100 | University of Delhi

101 | University of Hyderabad

102 | University of Jammu

103 | University of Kashmir

104 | University of Kerala

105 | University of Madras

106 | University of Mumbai

107 | University of Mysore

108 | Visva - Bharti University

109 | XLRI - Xavier School of Management

95




Canadian Member Institutions

Member Institutions

1 | Athabasca University

2 | Cape Breton University

3 | Carleton University

4 | Concordia University

5 | Dalhousie University

6 | Laurentian University

7 | Université Laval

8 | McGill University

9 | McMaster University

10 | NSCAD University

11 | Queen's University

12 | Ryerson University

13 | Saint Mary's University

14 | St. Thomas University

15 | Université du Québec a Montréal
16 | University of Alberta

17 | The University of British Columbia
18 | University of Calgary

19 | University of Guelph

20 | University of Lethbridge

21 | University of Manitoba

22 | Université de Montréal

23 | University of New Brunswick
24 | University of Ottawa

25 | University of Regina

26 | University of Saskatchewan
27 | University of the Fraser Valley
28 | University of Toronto

29 | University of Victoria

30 | University of Waterloo

31 | Western University

32 | University of Windsor

33 | Wilfrid Laurier University

34 | York University
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9 "qa‘%@ D & t

feraur 3. | 3100320197 | 31/03/2018 T
. 5. 5.
TIehS T sieh T 5
T UHS (Jee FRT JHIorer) 23,690 30,938
STt d § 99
i EEGRGI 6,495,625 (2,343,407
i, dRESE 39,500,000 47,124,243
i, S G - YaTa 8,264 68
46,027,579 44,811,842
R/UT Ue UIEY 6
(TgRfara, G=TIa %)
ST A1 e H AT TehT | AT STH & aTed Heal H 1,519,177 6,242,271
ST TS (T &G ek TS 1)
IR UetaTTSHT o | St e iy 6,195,986 4,185,549
7,715,163 10,427,820
TTe ATt 7
L =¥ &q faeg o 2,437,974 2,775,848
EREIGEEHIR! - 1,082,636
2,437,974 3,858,484
I SIS A TRIohIeT o] Haeidl S 95,983 95,233
95,983 95,233
Il Ffastea fAf:
ST FrIsH 1,817 1,817
TEIHTCRT R (I AT 178,451 216,856
REACERCRNICIECA RS 924,291 660,857
T TATE SR Y@t 79,147 79,147
[REUSRKEAR RIS EARED 83,452 116,496
RIERIEIEEEI GRS SR T - 1,591,356
HEAeh STTHUT TR FTishd - 560,005
1,267,157 3,226,532
. Sfiagwaaffa:
Tt fasfietdr sl 2,486,758 2,826,210
GIYTSIA 68 Tl 5 3,088,651 787,963
Tt SneTeff STRIqTa T wRIRH 14,553,970 17,921,671
T SR WIS s 6,690,843 7,500,000
26,820,221 29,035,844
F 30,621,335 36,216,092
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AT FHATerd, T8 fEeett
(R ST o fomT e # forferer)
T AT 599 @Al <kl FATETAT (%. T &FTET )
foremo .| 310032019 | 31/032018 =t
| | THH Y] THTH T 7
TETTeTd TSI qel =9 T
e
eI o fTT W JhR o ST{eH 15,000,000 15,492,560
ST ST 57 3 T I TeH 546,402 1,509,665
14,453,598 13,982,896
E
HHERI AT
A q>T AT 7,707,290 7,035,818
wfersr ffer o e 856,284 705,182
HATHA T H IR 1,708,093 12,283
AT TfRTeTor qeT et 13,458 77,526
T He oy 164,368 149,025
10,449,493 7,979,834
YT qUT 3T 59
GOR 93,189 131,251
[ERCERIESEI 251,370 226,786
Sr-vaq 26,006 25,652
eI T SATIHTII THIT 174,862 143,173
Tt wuta o faska/ e w et 5,200 204,823
TETIAT Ik T STIEH 17,700 17,250
fafaer = 68,106 45,334
STETE/IUTEAE hl ATAT 7T 3T T 234,067 159,081
ST AT SR 134,048 155,033
S-G9 35,419 69,220
[RLCCTY 319,942 396,864
AL TS 1@ W@d-ad 570,609 1,748,407
A U9 1@ W@E-31 149,615 265,647
it = 565,364 465,388
AT AT FHTY 734,440 592,672
FR F R T o 460,078 457,178
3,840,014 5,104,259
el g S 14,289,507 13,084,093
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AT AT S Ty kY At (5. H &)
foramur . | 31032019 31/03/2018
d | \uWaNEq THTH 9 7
UEAhTCTY hTISHA Sl SATERIET &t
T
I HEHTL o STTEH 250,000 505,000
gfg: wfersifera fafer & afaor 216,856 209,001
466,856 714,001
Teq: Ticrsierd e gu sty sfawor 178,451 216,856
288,405 497,146
=
[SECSEIEEIR SRR R - 083,980
BliEGERSIG] - 40,327
AT wmwft - 157
VTR EeT ERITT o fo SAfeT 288,405 272,682
288,405 497,146
girurafia wg g el ht g &t
RS
VT R & ST 4,779,500 4,345,000
i widerg =7 it & sfafta@ 787,963 ;
gfg: s et e & sfafa 1,591,356 866,883
7,158,819 5,211,883
37eq iderg = 4 o sfafa 3,088,651 787,963
39 isiterd e 7 8 SRRy SHeror - 1,591,356
4,070,168 2,832,564
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AT AT S Ty kY At (5. H &)
foramur . | 31/032019%T | 31/03/2018 &Y
| | wuwadeg |UTH 9 ¥
g
gfemsta whafafiat
VI HEEaT e e
TR T e, ey oo™ 15,000
T T STHET, TET faafeer - 15,000
HEHIERIEDIR] 15,000
TEAT/ER g
EERICG KN CE ) 161,070 283,200
T S 473,596 266,532
VITHT HTERH TorehTer STET
ATl oA ToRITer — S, Shed T T 200,000
BT fraferne — <f. axaedt 315,319
faaeiten faafoamer — <. s i 255,000
TRIUTH — AR Ao e 255,000
T St fraforer — gvelia TR 255,000
il feraforenere — st forar et 255,000
TATETISIC 376H — ST Ferret e 170,000
VT STRTI SR
forereTia Torafommer™ — ST dimar s 117,000
TRITH — AT o Seae 85,000
frfes sraframar faafmes - safez 39 99,450
T, SRV, st Seeh
3TTeTaT o HeTerT et T 150 off St Heteda s AT 168,831
HETET H Tl & HaT wRishT 2,712 -
fefamie feet ik et 187,589
A ST 3 TRE o HednT & SRS (HTTSeT) 401,205
S fepaferanerd § wRier 10,000
13 el 2017 T TSt 99,762
EREIRR RN IR BRI 62,785
22 WTadt 2018 i feqement 1 33 - 6,665
I T HATST o TSI T HFer: Haroiy foerm et s 1,242,190 829,042
et
VT T FATET o S[ST T HATH: e T aise - 655,785
4,070,168 2,832,564
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AT AT S Ty kY At (5. H &)

foramur . | 31032019 31/03/2018
d | \uWaNEq THTH 9 7

TG et STk Uget ehl ATHET &

&=

I TR 6 ST 2,500,000 2,970,000

gf: wete M & sfafa 660,857 342,268
3,160,857 3,312,268

37eq: widsitid Ffey o g TRy sfqwr 924,291 660,857
2,236,566 2,651,411

==

VTR T TToe shi sigeh T g3TT o7 1,685,317 1,734,997

YIS T ST e Teet W 31 o 551,250 916,414
2,236,566 2,651,411
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AT AT = Ty hY At (5. ¥ o)
T 3. | 31/032019 T | 31/03/2018 =t
¥ | GUHONE | OHH Y Rq
VI HEATTA HEAIeh STHUT TRATAT hIAshd hl AT | 3
T
VT R & ST 5,088,500 5,410,000
fg: e = M & siafa 7,500,000 7,000,000
gfg: T & uTH FeAta i 3,287 3,711,000
i wfasifera fafer & sfafa 560,005 7
13,151,792 16,121,007
39 isiterd ey 7 8 SRR SHeror - 560,005
3oy ideg oo ffer o siafa 6,690,843 7,500,000
6,460,949 8,061,002
=3
AT AT TR # T e
forarifean foraforamers - srfefa T 500,000 -
HTSIHATSTH FHRNYL — A= Teoed TeA 500,000 -
I ST fiTeh! e @S — H{Hd FAR T - 255,000
Feftelt — et & - 45,000
HATEATES Sivel — Telt o et 425,000 500,000
HTEIATEEY STvel — BT, SR TR - 500,000
Ficter forgfaraer™ — <. 7o smTE 425,000 500,000
stieran gt — i femm 425,000 500,000
ATEITES Tt — . T8 HaaR 425,000 500,000
HTEATE Tl — ST, AT B3R AT - 500,000
RISl TerafraTers Aifgaet — S, TgHH hifer= 425,000 500,292
TEhIE fargfaames — 391 gog 425,000 500,000
HTSATE TR — <. 3Fier g - 500,000
AMETES fooeft — 1. gy ot 3. - 500,000
FTerr forgferemer — <. s - 500,000
atete] foraforaer — <. Aeht g - 500,000
aTete] foraforery - . Sifd qastt 419,892 500,000
e - <. gt A 425,000 500,000
rgarTedt foreafa — ot . Sxrpe - 500,000
TUCTUH3TSY SHTe — B TR o - 255,000
sttt wfif & == 34,077 5,710
ST ST — ST T TSy 500,000 -
STTfer oot sEafiaT — Uy R 500,000 -
HTSIATEE FSH! — ST &Y =IeH 500,000 ;
TS Tgehl — iy foramg 500,000 -
TR 31,980 -
6460949 8061002




AT AT T @AY B et (5. T grian )
Terarur 3. | 31/03/2019 %1 | 31/03/2018 =t
€ | wHWANe | SHWAN g
T TTCOTICTAT HTA3HH <hl SATEE T
SIS
I R o ST 34,410,198 4,009,271
gf: wiieg =@ ffa @ siafa 2,826,210 3,665,932
i wfaeifera ffer & sfafa - 6,372
6,236,408 7,671,575
7eq widerg = 4 o sfafa 2,486,758 2,826,210
37T widsiterd Ffey H 3 sty sfqwor - -
3,749,650 4,845,365
E
rfeyfota wfifd &g = 6,707 455
2018-19 % TfieTaT shrisha o qrehd forstarail o forg =2 1,206,522 -
2017-18 o Tfcrefierdt shralshH o Qo ferstaradl o fore s 2,504,139 1,185,950
2016-17 o Tt shralshm o quehd ferstaradl < fore s - 3,658,960
ENICIEERSR] 32,282 -
3,749,650 4,845,365
I TTeITeft STTHETT AT HTHsHH ol AT (T il
grfur)
T
T R o ST 21,851,350 23,827,524
i e =z At & sfafa 17,921,671 21,508,406
gfg: wfasifera ffer @ sfafea - 50,555
39,773,021 45,386,485
3T Widerg =77 ffr o sfaf 14,553,970 17,921,671
3T HEANT STHE TSI & e - 1,000,000
37eq; widsitird Ffey o g TRy sfqwr - -
25,219,051 26,464,813
=
it wfuf oq = 35,407 50,960
foreaTita vt SR Frishn 1,885,820 1,823,358
2016-17 % | THITRTHUS T [eISidT o [oTC 532 87,571 19,273,872
2017-18 % 35 THITRTHTE [0 forstarat o forg = 17,222,598 4,878,795
2018-19 % THSTTETE [0 ferstaradi o forq =2 5,602,991 -
ERIGIECEZR] 384,664 437,829
25,219,051 26,464,813

160




T AT 5AF @TAl kT ST (5. W &r=RToT )
feramor . | 310032019 | 31/032018
| | |EHEYR] T T 30
Trafra derra/AT SR At rTEE () Gl
T
I R o ST - 1,650,000
gfg: wfesifera ffer o sfafea 116,496 73,245
116,496 1,723,245
T FEAIN I AT TRASHIAT o g Siafea - 1,600,000
39 isiterd e 7 8 SRR SHeror 83,452 116,496
33,044 6,749
==
SHAITE ¥ TTeh STHT o 1S I 2 33,044 -
ERICIECESR] - 6,749
33,044 6,749
TUT ST IcEa HTAHA <h AT () ElH
=
WA BT o AT 75,034 2,500
gfg: it ffer & sfafa - -
75,034 2,500
37eq; widsiferd Ffey o g TRy sfqwr - ;
75,034 2,500
=
Tt STt 3T 3gTeH GHRIE 12,731 -
St Feree Testrg et 62,303 2,500
75,034 2,500
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T AT 5AF @TAl kT ST (&. W 49T )
ferarur . | 31032019 | 31/03/2018
4. THTE 6 2] T T 30

TR-geterd T Bl
RIEE IR 374,469 3,048,878
T VI TR 2 ToFaT T TS YT - (3,231,442)
ST ¥ 3 (3[6) 374,469 (182,564)
o o6t it forelt wafeat 35,304 -
farferer et 3,794 5,673
413,567 (176,891)
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TR T, 75 feeett

(ForeT SR St o6 AT o wiFAferd)

31 9T, 2019 % ot framott st wifea sraeh Wi
wgssw

HEIYUT er@TeRuT fifaat qa st w fevaforat
1. Wyt forfr Ao

a. AW

T F11 o 7T STH T T8GRI A1 GRaTer Toied o &9 H afishd foRaT TaT T hTishui oh ST STH e i
frforfad & # affera fora smar 2:

T dh-

o S W IR RTISHEh{TUHEA U STe et g3 cifeh 3o Heiforq TIfdaiter o o sy 37me for
3 T BT, ot Sfdiers =21 iRt o &9 H afiehd fohaT ST & T =1 aaTieal o &9 H e foham
o HTSHY S FTHH TS o &Y H afiehd T T,

o Tyl Wil o Sh W, GST ST9RT o 9§ A T afiehd &, Hraierd s o (o) o e = o ST
TSrereh STeaATt ot o Aol Wit oie o foreg, Smmaor foham 7 2|

® 3N T GHTTH TR TR T Sfciaifera o3t o geaiaiid € < STl @ qof <i1e] SAaTieal o &9 H Jehe &relt 2|
b. TR o ATIR
IR R Hft AT AT THET-Sier R T 2
c. T HufET
TS EOfrET bt AT o1 AT R foRet 311 Haiferd = o wrer siiehd foRam TR 2
d. eI
Hufrl T STeree G €. 5000 ¥ e € St frefafad ot o STar srafoied ged fater o e foram St 2
RS RIRRETEN 18.10%
ERRISRIERCau| 13.91%

qreT 25.89%
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)

(i)

(iif)

R 40.00%

o

T GUIEET AT Y H W S Hed I e § 5000 T e B

FreishH T & et 7S HOftrl T STeree St S W fohaT T QT S TSt H ST S e |
G TRT T g foha T )

BTG & ATH
wfersa fafer

e U fwger 7k 1 uieear vy fiftr sferer 341 2 S OeRa WuwTia 2T 21 HEI 3 379 FHHeiEr i qfasr
fftr it @t & fAT 1994-95 F Wk St wifesy e o @ie 21 31 A, 2003 79 g wiasr fifer qen shee
wiosr ffYr @ geiftrg o il iwem ot B, et aa genford =9 @ foam s & qun 19789, 2003 & a7 auft
HaTieE sl wfersy Ry & sigrem T )

EREIE]

T, 37T T3S, ehfetied SanfAaf AT (3uTer i) Tt e at qur st i Suee yeH wdt 21 3ueH
ST WA AT SRS TIH T SQH 6l ST €, S aesiferd s o oad § e i qeT TH.3T8 81378, & a1g
ST 3 VTS T ST 2 TH 377,601,318, UM 36 1 afieh SIREM] % ST UM @ Y &t & S 36 32
3 foTT s-aIR R Sfra sfan fm (o, 3 af) 1 3 3t R

T ST & cld, Tueid 1 ST SUIEH 2 o TTe ST T@dT 2| Ut 3TTS 6. TS Jemfdr it & a7 2% & g
1Y Siftem sivre r fFuff et )

B2 T ARSI

TE.3TE 1317, ek freifiq Sanfrafn Ao (@ Terdierr arermyast s ot qen STeTiE s gt TR Sem
FAAT 21 T TRCIHT ATSHT YA AT HATHSH HHIH TG i ST &, S Swsiford HHanieal o oo & e L qo
TH.3TS H13ATS. o A1 [ oh YIS 90 ST 8 21 TH.3ATS. 3T e Tohalontul g 1 aTfveh SHYRMHI o6 ST et
Teha [ohL0T AT T LT 2 ST 36 399 o foTT sI-aIT 9 ST STt o (Ue. 3178 6, <Rl Aie 2t 2

30 AISHT o ST, TS 1 ST FET THRAIRLT 2 o AT ST TedT ol T, 3175 6. ATSHT SRIa et @ a7 36 o
T STTavae SifeRn 3ve o feifig et 21

@At i feoafurt
AQTIRIeTeR T AT

T W Yo (S.uw. 2. ) 31/03/2019 %. 1,09,148 31/03/2018 . 1,03,950
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LT [

WA Hee TG o Wl § STH a1fvieh S[oeh fohelt it ofeh @ o ST 21 forey e o wdter wfufa o 1 W, 2017 ¥
STt ST 1 T e o Tl o 0 o Tawrat Yoeh aiiehd et o1 fote Toram & o 3 TSl T AT ol 3T o &9 H
HHT ST, forgent T shrisen Tiatatedt & forg fomam S aeran 21

A 2018-19 % SR T fofir R o [Epd fasirett & R &. 2,68,20,221/- 1 TRT Widerg, =0 & &9 §
SpIECRRIDT

EESHRCINIKRIESEIREIGI EAR RN K e BIEE]
et o o TS bl . fiehal/ . T (et X (o2 TR &, et +ff <1y a1 o aiahor shi qfE T ST g

(R FrITere) TTEE IThieH
(3TTE.E T.3TE. USTieRTureiEaT 012190N)

(TRt whYeT) @fea ==
[EEHED LIFEEy

GEEdT 981 084878
EVIEH Tscﬁﬁﬁ

feiR:23/05/2019
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AT 41 YT
e FHRSCCH

ME FE-PAAT FEITE
(F=TreT Frie)
farita R
31 9/, 2019 H TG
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(FATET HHETEH)
foreftar forarur &t fersarareht
31 HT=, 2019 i THTH

freaefia erETRR fare

foreftar feraor

fortar Rearfer wht foramor

sttt ffer & wrenem o uftad faaor
ek TATE T faraor

forftar foraunt w fevafurat

T (HATEE 1)

SIUwTEET 2018-2019 (FTFET 2)

qu\“mz

TTEE FFREH
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ShUT AT UfeTae
TTEE TRTSECH

Freoer ET-uderes i foae

Har
TrrareTeRTor, STt S-S e He (FATET Hrater)
7q

T SeI-HSTT RN (HE) o fordier formor =1 oran-wdieror foram 2, St 21 @, 2019 do i forfir feurfa a0t
forerar, o o iq de sl e qen g vaTe o Herer Ue giEAT i foeor Si wecael e i &
iy fga forfrr foraor s s garfas R

BHI forem # 31 |1, 2019 7 ST o6t ferefrar fearfcr o arvft Suerolt & weiferd forttr foremor 316 &9 & weqa fopg mr 8
3T T T o6 TIOTTH T LS aTe TR ETSH o6 FTSTS TI@ich Heh! o STT {HTH a9 H &1 71T 2

Hd el TR

T ST -SRI HTHTIG: FATSTS ral-TIET Heh o STTER SelTferd foha 81 37 AIhi o el ga afie 31
T TS o STTATT forefler faraer 3 Siar- et & forg ear-wierd 1 Rtd & afvid 8| e Afde STemmatt o TR 46
T & S FATST 8 GHIRT oy Ferarort o oiaT-oiielT & Heiferd & ST g9 3 STUETSA o ST 31 Afceh area
T fora 21 T forarmar & foh @y ST < orlter SHTOT ST R & &l @M oeT-adieT #el 261 SATIR Yo shi o foTq vty oo
3 &

Tercf1a] Tararort & 1oTq Yafer qef 34 Ima THIRAT & JaTed

TR TS o6 ToTT FATSTS e HIeh! o STTHR 3 forciter foreutt i damdt cor foeet sreqyfar o for wrefer Jaeereht
& 3T 3fafe T Siifer forcter forermont o1 e 21 wem s o fore Srefer feieor st © freer fomor 7 7
Y, < a1 St AT TTeAdl! ok SHIoT 41 A 2l

forcfier Ferareott =h1 R ot , el ek o SR o 0 H ECT o6l &l ohl TR i, AT i, T i,
TR Y Geiferd ArHet i T@ich o Tetd FURI o ST 3 JYFNT L % fIu fFieR 2 STe deh eier a1 af S8 sl
S O AT ST T G AT UHT S % 1T iS AT frer forshod shT ST T8l T 2

STEA TR e skt forfr e wfska st Frdieror s o fore e 2id &
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TR Fe1-oh e T o fasTehi o ot freae -t feard (et U8 @ <)
fordier fararont &t cramaRial & forg ciar-qdier & STaTiied

AT 3 36 X 4 S ST ST A § foh  forcfr foraor oi: ofifoer qform @ 4 €, AR At sA WAl F
FHIT T &, I T oar-wlieres it {are St o o fore ot gam wa oft wnfirer 21 sfua emames ua S=a s
STATEH g, TATeht I TTRET e & Sif AR T FATSTS HETHITET HIehT o A1ef TehI fohT T ST TaT St Hisg 8
TR BT U Wifieh geAaRTL 2h1 WAl HITCT| G a5et 3T i H 3e=1 &1 Wehdl & ST wfieh WwerT ST At s fer 2
e & § T 3o U T ST AT e 3 oy Forarolt o AT W T T SIehT o 31feieh fofar aht varfere
T B HTHAR T FATSTS TG WIFhT % FTer Tfiehrdl SHETIRIET o 1T o &0 8 &0 IToRie & WIeaw & 99t
foofer ot S o T € 37 IR HagaTe h S TEd B B

feretter ferarot 3 witfreh qedere o Saw Al ver= qoT 3ol F2d &, =T oot a1 3 i a7 8 &, 31 g
o JTERA ST e Frfater bt o Teh O e & 37T IEToReT SFHToT ST 3 @ ST ST 7 & ST e
T o {0 waie T ST 81 el o TROTHEET € alel HifdeR SIaER i udl el o 1 Siied A %
TROTTHEEEY i aTel § el Ao 8, SteTfeh Bt § fefird, STerarsft, STser i ST aTeft =, AYg 374 a1
STafer T it e i 2

rETRYET & T ot et s e w6 o st et i wwer e e € S affufot
I el & T S 6 TN R0 1 TATTRTT T 7 S0 e o e 6 e 2l

I FoRT ST ATt TRt Aiferat 6 ST o SIETeRtoT STisherT o6 ot S e T Tl T
eI Tehe 1 Ao Hd B

TR FHTE ok SATHR h Je(eH oh U shl STRRAT 3 S0 SETifaaet ST 3 STer ot fo fohrerr 2,
are fifaes stffiraar 37 aemelt A uiRufo & wefd & S FRa SR & &9 § dea i | U
et et a6 foreer 2 st 31 afe gw frd fec for i sttt wiee @ @ o forftar forameott & weifera
Yohe B CIETALET shi TS ht T T SATHINA i ohl STEd ©, 3T AT UH Jehed STTATH © g1 310 7 H
aftard ST T TR fe e it faie % STER & SITH CRETORIE ST O ST ) aait,
Viforsy 5 B Tt sreTat! AT feerfoRi 3 SHROT HE T T foroy o Hahall 2

e Wfed ferer foront <hi e Srefe, ST S Tt ot e T €, S o forer oo  stafifea
e 3T HRISHHT bl 39 T ST 7RI & cfTfeh 38 Feqeq srefel s &1 =g

B 31 WISl | AT i AroTerg, FoRaTt oo To 37T Heea ol TaTorIedT -l o | 3 et FTii o arer dare
T €, o sttt freor § g recaqut =g e @ S g 7o SraTiaT % SR Teed B

26 3194, 2019

169




(SHATST HTITCTH)
IERIRRE LR ANCC
31 |T=,2019
2019 2018
Hufat
T
THh $ 144,995 $ 22,830
Tt st 197,414 146,313
AR @ 6,049 202,349
qded 7 - 2,061
TR Frerd | ¢ (12 2) 6,447 -
324,905 373,553
ST (123 273 389
gfegor Tfyrn et | far 1 1
$ 325,179 $ 373,943
FETIET Ue g ufvat
LI
T T 37 il et $ 82432 $ 58,719
TR e WeF ([12 2) - 79,704
82,432 138,943
w15 wufwat
ST (712 4) 43,513 43,296
STt ®7 9 Sfieifed (e 4) 30,909 30,309
Siciferd 168,925 161,915
242,747 235,520
$ 325,179 $ 373,943
S hY AR
frewren
\EEHED
THAR AT UfeTae
S e forefer faeeoit 35 o vz o1 2
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(FATET HHETEE)
arafaafera ffer & wemer 3R ufterd feemor
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